
Meeting Minutes SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, November 4th, 2009.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Steven Kessler, Chairman presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Loretta Taylor, Vice-Chairperson 



John Bernard, Board Member 




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 



Ivan Kline, Board Member




Susan Todd, Board Member (absent)



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




Edward Vergano, Department of Technical Services 




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Jeffrey Rothfeder, CAC 




Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA BY MAJORITY VOTE 
Mr. Steven Kessler stated we have one addition to the agenda this evening, we’ll add it as letter ‘e’ at the end of “correspondence” and it regards Planning Board 43-06 the Michael Ryan subdivision.  Can I please have a motion to add that to the agenda, so moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye."   



*



*



*




ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 1, 2009
Mr. Steven Kessler asked can I please have a motion to adopt the meeting minutes from our meeting of September the 1st, so moved, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I’m submitting a few corrections, with all in favor saying "aye."


*



*



*
RESOLUTIONS

PB 13-07    a.
Letter dated August 25, 2009 from Brian Panessa requesting the reconsideration of condition #22 from Planning Board Resolution 30-08 limiting advertising of food services at the Hilltop Nursery located at 2028 Albany Post Road.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion we approve resolution 48-09 with corrections to the last paragraph, I can read them but if someone else wants to.

Mr. John Klarl stated the last paragraph now reads: “now, therefore, be it resolved that the Planning Board agrees to modify condition 22 to permit advertising for the food service in the Café and general media, subject to no outdoor seating for the Café being permitted on the porch and no exterior signage for food service.”

Mr. Steven Kessler asked second please, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." Opposed?  Poll the Board please Chris?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mr. Kline; aye, Mr. Bernard; aye, Mr. Bianchi; aye, Chairman Kessler; aye, Ms. Taylor; no, Mr. Foley; aye.  Five to one.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated motion carries.

PB 6-09      b.
Public Hearing: Application of Appian Way Ventures, LLC for Site Development Plan approval and a Tree Removal Permit for site improvements including a gravel driveway, parking, boat storage and additional landscaping for an existing industrial building on a 3.2 acre parcel of property located on Sixth Street and Madalyn Avenue as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Plan” prepared by Gemmola & Associates, LLC latest revision dated July 23, 2009 and a one page drawing entitled “Site & Utility Plan for Appian Way Ventures, LLC” prepared by Tim Cronin, III, P.E. dated August 17, 2009 (see prior PB 26-04).

Mr. John Bernard stated Mr. Chairman I move that we approve resolution 49-09 with the inclusion of a condition to get rid of the existing contractor’s yard, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 14-06    c.
Application of Richard Heinzer for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 2 lot minor subdivision of a 39,480 sq. ft. parcel of land located on the east side of Crumb Place, approximately 200 feet south of Ogden Avenue, as shown on a 3  page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan Prepared for Richard Heinzer” prepared by Ralph  G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2009 and on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Conditions Plan” prepared by James DeLalia, RLA, latest revision dated November 17, 2008. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Chairman I’m recusing myself.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated so noted Mr. Foley. 

Mr. Brad Schwartz presented himself to the Board and stated here on behalf of the applicant.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think Mr. Steinmetz was going to ask that we give us an extension to postpone this to our December meeting.

Mr. Brad Schwartz responded that’s fine.  We’ll submit a letter confirming your time to extend the time to vote and we’ll adjourn and be back next month.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated when we have the full complement of the Board members hopefully.

Mr. John Klarl asked so send me a letter for extension to the day after the next meeting.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated what do I need for a motion?

Mr. John Klarl responded this was on for a resolution so why don’t we make a motion to adjourn it for resolution date of next month.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adjourn this for a resolution to be considered at the next month’s meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*

PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

PB 10-06    a.
Public Hearing: Application of Sammy Musa Eljamal of Best Rent Properties for Amended Site Development Plan approval and for Tree Removal and Wetland Permits for the construction of a new access drive on the south side of the site and for a proposed 1,728 sq. ft. convenience store and a 1,200 sq. ft. addition to the car wash at the existing gas station/car wash located on the south west corner of Route 6 and the Cortlandt Town Center Access Drive as shown on a 1 page drawing entitled “Site Plan, Proposed Site Improvements” prepared by Bohler Engineering, P.C. latest revision dated August 24, 2009 (see prior PB 25-90 & 42-94).

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we have a letter from Bohler Engineering dated November 3rd asking us that we remove this from the agenda this evening since the DEC has not yet made a site visit to their site.  With that, can I please have a motion?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adjourn this public hearing to our December meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye."

PB 8-09       c.
Public Hearing: Referral from the Town Board transmitting the proposed draft zoning amendment regarding the PODS Ordinance for a recommendation from the Planning Board.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated this is a public hearing, does anybody wish to comment on the proposed Ordinance?  Anybody from the Board wish to comment?
Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion that we close this public hearing, seconded with all in favor saying "aye."  I make a motion that we approve resolution 50-09, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*

PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW)

PB 1-07       a.
Application of Mark Giordano, for the property of Ruth Cohen, for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 6 lot major subdivision of a 23.4 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Upland Lane, south of Mt. Airy Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Alternate Layout “A” Preliminary, Plat, Proposed Subdivision of Upland Estates,” and “Alternate Layout “A” Tree Preservation Plan,” latest revision dated August 20, 2009, and “Watershed Map” dated August 19, 2009 all prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Landscape Plan for the Development, Upland Estates” prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. dated August 20, 2009.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated for the record our attorney Mr. Klarl and Board member Mr. Bernard are recused from this application.

Mr. Tim Miller stated this is an application for a six lot subdivision.  We have actually been before this Board on a number of occasions and we’ve been doing a lot of work with staff to address various comments that have come up over the course of the past year or so.  I believe the Board has received a letter from Steven Coleman who is the Environmental Consultant that has been retained by the Town to assist in the review of this matter.  Mr. Coleman did wetland delineations, he did a biodiversity report.  There’s also being other consultants retained on behalf of the Town including LBG, a ground water specialist to address some comments that have been made about ground water and surface water conditions.  We’ve made a number of modifications to the plan that I think are nicely summarized in Mr. Coleman’s report dated October 1, 2009.  The modifications to the plan have been in response to various comments that we’ve heard in the past year as this has been reviewed by Town and Town advisors.  The road for this project has been relocated outside the 100 foot buffer.  The road width has been decreased from 20 feet to 18 feet to reduce impervious surfaces.  The road layout itself was modified further upslope to minimize the impact on specimen trees.  There’s a landscape plan that’s been prepared for the entrance area.  There’ll be buffer plantings provided on the western side of the site if requested by neighbors.  Storm water basins have been relocated outside 100 buffer areas.  The basins meet New York State DEC design standards.  There’s a basin planting plan that provides planting in the basins, storm water management, nutrient uptake, etc.  The former proposed lot 6 has been relocated to the west side of the road.  There’s been a conservation easement proposed along the entire new lot 6.  It’s about 4 acres in size.  The applicant also included a 30 foot-wide buffer along the Con Edison property which is located to the north of the property and a 50 foot-wide buffer along the western property line.  Larger groupings of trees have been preserved.  Some driveways have been relocated.  There was an arborist that examined the site at the Town’s request and the trees have been surveyed, identified.  We believe that we’ve done a good job to preserve specimen trees and larger groupings of trees.  There is a tree preservation plan that’s been submitted with the application.  We have indicated we’ll request a waiver from the Board of Health to not clear expansion areas on the septic system.  I believe that we’ve taken a lot of steps to respond to the various comments that have been set forth by your advisors and by your staff and with that we would be interested in hearing the Board’s comments and the public’s comments.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked any comments from before we ask the public from the Board?  This is a public hearing, is there anybody that wishes to comment on this application?
Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard from River Lane in Cortlandt on behalf of the Croton Arboretum.  “The Croton Arboretum and Sanctuary Inc. has followed this application since 2007.  We would like to thank your Board and Town staff for the attention that has been given to our concerns, in particular, we would like to acknowledge the efforts of DOTS Director Ed Vergano in producing a greatly improved site plan.  Improvements specifically affecting the Arboretum include the following: moving the proposed access road farther from the stream that drains to the Arboretum wetlands, moving the storm water detention basin out of the wetland, a landscaping plan for the basin to improve storm water filtration and treatment, moving the house on lot 1 (which is formerly lot 6) away from the stream, separating the subdivision from the stream with a conservation easement.  While these changes will benefit the Arboretum more work needs to be done.  I have followed the numbering of the applicant’s August 20th response to Steve Coleman’s July 14th review of Upland’s Estates: 1) the proposed access road; the applicant intends to install curbs along the road to direct storm water run-off directly to the basin.  I understand that there is insufficient room for effective swales which require a minimum of 75 feet, but the applicant’s reason for rejecting stone line swales “an undesirable visual condition that can also be hazardous to pedestrians” is unclear to me.  Pedestrians don’t walk in swales especially when a paved road is available.  Since swales are preferable to curbs, both for slowing and aerating storm water discharge to the basin, we ask your Board to require an alternative to the proposed curbs.  2)  the storm water detention basin; infiltration trenches on individual lots are proposed to intercept run-off and to reduce the rate at which storm water is released to the detention basin.  LBG Engineering Services pointed to a number of problems with these structures in their report of February 20th, specifically: the trenches are sized for small one-year rain storms.  The proposed method of construction must be changed if they are to be effective.  The trenches require maintenance to keep them open and free from soil and vegetative debris.  Because trench design installation and maintenance problems decrease their effectiveness, we ask that your Board direct staff to find more effective methods to manage storm water.  The use of rain gardens has been suggested in several reports, comments and discussions of this proposal.  Rain guardance when designed and installed by qualified professionals have an established track record.  Given their track record and low maintenance requirements, especially when compared with infiltration trenches, rain gardens merit consideration.  The structure and function of these trenches impacts the function of the detention basin.  If the trenches are not kept open the overflow goes straight to the basin causing it to flood above its banks.  LBG’s February 20th report further notes that the sediment trap is undersized given the size of the contributing drainage area.  These engineering and design details concern us because if the basin overflows, the water quantity and quality flowing into the stream and hence to the Arboretum can be dramatically affected.  We also questioned whether your Board is constrained to accept calculations based on the assumptions that 10 and 100 year storms are rare events.  Recent history shows that more frequent, short, very heavy storms are the norm.  Can your Board required an applicant to design to these conditions?  I also note with concern the line stating that the design for storm water basin “will be finalized” prior to subdivision approval and wonder why at this late date the design has not been finalized.  3) proposed lot 6: lot 6, now lot 1 has been moved away from the stream.  A 4 acre conservation easement is now lot 6.  Two conservation easements are proposed, one between the road and the stream and the second between Con Edison’s right-of-way and the subdivision.  The stream side easements: the addition of this buffer is a major improvement to protecting water quality of the water flowing into the stream and hence to the Arboretum.  It may also serve to replace some of the wildlife habitat that will be lost, but a 4-acre plot exposed on three sides cannot be considered forever wild.  Given the degraded state of the existing woods it will need to be landscaped with appropriate trees and shrubs.  It will require many maintenance if only to control invasive vines but there is no commitment in the plan to landscape or maintain it.  If your Board intends to require mitigation for some of the wildlife habitat that Upland Estates displaces than this area should be given the same attention that the storm water control basin receives.  Who will be responsible for controlling invasive vines or otherwise maintaining this area in the future and also very important, who will hold and enforce the easement?  Moving to the Con Edison easement: the primary advantage of this 30 to 50 foot strip is visual relief for residents from the site of last spring’s massive clearing of a 250 foot wide right-of-way.  As wildlife habitat it makes no sense, it’s too small and given it’s exposure to open land on both sides it is destined to become nothing but a strip of degraded vine infested woods.  Since Upland Estates will replace valuable wooded habitat and particularly the increasingly rare deep wood’s habitat noted in Coleman’s report a much larger, continuous, forested buffer should be required along the back of the lots.  This could easily be achieved by requiring the deed restrictions be placed on the lots to preserve the existing forest areas.  4), 8), 9), 10) and 11) tree removal and habitat destruction.  The applicant’s arborist and landscape architect’s report notes that the limit of disturbance shown on the original site plan can result in removing 46% of the existing trees.  The amended site plan draws lines close to the houses and labels them “limits of disturbance.”  This change is purely cosmetic unless the applicant intends to lock the new lines in place and prohibit further development on each lot.  I urge your Board to require the applicant to submit a site plan that makes this scenario clear.  Either the plan follows green design guidelines that specifically preserve existing tree cover or the approximately 50% clearing shown on the original site plan is the true plan.  12) site specific soil analysis: we note that the site plan lies on Westchester soil mapping and preliminary on site soil test.  It is not clear whether the preliminary testing was done to assess suitable locations for wells and septic systems.  Soils that are not suitable may require design changes that may result in off-site impacts.  We are concerned that without site specific testing various structures, such as for example: the infiltration trenches, roads, driveways, etc, may have to be altered.  We urge your Board to require an amended site plan showing these changes if they are necessary prior to granting approval.  13) The Hydrogeologist’s report: we have previously expressed both our thanks to your Board for requiring the applicant to hire a Hydrogeologist and our great dissatisfaction with the report produced.  The report focuses primarily on hydrology issues while ignoring our concerns with the changes in hydrogeology.  High on the list of these concerns is the fate of more than 11 intermittent streams that enter the Arboretum from the northeast and are crucial to documented diverse species in our preserve.  It is specifically the removal of a large percentage of the mature woodland on Upland Estates that can be expected to produce changes in the water budget and not the surface water run-off discussed by LBG.  Besides not addressing our particular concern, LBG relied on published rainfall data and simply assumed rates for variables such as rainfall, precipitation, infiltration, run-off, etc, to produce a macro-analysis adequate for a planning study rather than a site specific study requested that would gauge the impacts on the Arboretum.  In response to our request for baseline studies the applicant’s consultants claimed that any studies are meaningless because they are snapshots of a particular moment in time.  Following this logic, any study involving measurement is anecdotal and for the same reason.  We continue to maintain that baseline testing of water quality and water flows is critical to assessing the impacts of Upland Estates on the Arboretum.  Regarding LBG’s dismissal of Upland Estates impacts because its contribution to the Arboretum’s water budget is only a small part of the overall watershed, consider that a fingernail size strictening tablet is tiny relative to a normal daily caloric intake but nonetheless highly significant.  Finally, the Arboretum’s concerns with the impacts on water quantity, seasonal flows, and water quality have not been resolved.  We look forward to continuing to work with staff to improve the site plan.  Apart from its value as a community nature preserve its ecological value has been established by multiple professionals, the Arboretum is part of our areas biodiversity hub as defined by the Metropolitan Conservation Alliance.  It was the third pillar of Croton and Cortlandt’s successful opposition to the proposed routing of a high pressured gas pipeline.  Nearly 100 years of data from Westchester County’s Periodic Aerial Surveys document that the Arboretum and adjacent acreage have remained a remarkably stable accommodation of woodlands and wetlands that extend from Colabaugh Pond to the Hudson River.  We look to your Board to continue its stewardship of this priceless public and natural resource.”  I did have one last question, I did not realize that Mr. Klarl had to recuse himself from this application and I’m wondering in the absence of the Planning Board’s normal council who is advising you legally?
Mr. Steven Kessler responded I guess we don’t have one.  Can we get a copy of the – for the record.  Anybody else wish to comment on this application?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just for the record regarding the last question.  If there were any legal issues it would be referred to Tom Wood, the Town Attorney.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but he’s not present to the meeting.
Mr. Art Almeida presented himself to the Board and stated I live at 5 Foster Court.  I own the pond that abuts Upland Lane which is not shown on that map. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked which direction is that?

Mr. Art Almeida responded if you continue along this I’m on the right-hand side.  The top corner where the ‘x’ and the box and the dash line are.
Mr. Ed Vergano asked you’re off the plan though?

Mr. Art Almeida responded there’s a two-acre pond that has – the pond that I own is 2 acres and adjacent to it there’s about another a third or an acre, a half of an acre smaller pond directly to the left of it. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked see the map to your left there, no against the wall, does that show it?

Mr. Art Almeida responded yes, right here.  This pond and I own this pond underlined here and there’s this smaller pond here.  This pond extends a little bit more than what is shown here and it covers 2 acres.
Mr. Robert Foley asked is that the pond we see when we first drive in the driveway?

Mr. Art Almeida responded yes it’s on the left-hand side.  That pond is an amazing pond.  There’s a lot of wildlife and a lot of plant life in that pond.  It’s like Grand Central Station in terms of what lives there.  I have giant blue herons that live on that pond.  The herons nest on that smaller pond which is right here.  That’s where the herons nest.  I have ducks, geese, palliated wood peckers, cardinals, I have owls, turtles, boxed turtles, painted turtles, snapping turtles, I have all matter of fish, I have muskrat, beavers, snakes.  You name it I’ve got it there.  It’s just an amazing asset to that area.  I have a lot of concerns about what’s going to happen.  One, I have concerns over the run-off from that road which is that driveway.  I mean, that thing is pitched down and basically toward my pond.  I’m concerned about the septic system.  A lot of the soil in that area is very clay which is of course why there are ponds and when it really rains, you have a lot of ponding in that immediate area as well.  I’m very concerned about what’s going to happen to septic systems.  I’m concerned about what’s going to happen to pesticides that are being used on lawns.  All of that stuff is going to go directly right to that pond or go close to that pond.  I don’t see any protection for the pond at all.  That’s the first thing.  I don’t know what protections they’re offering if any.  I’m also concerned about the effects of construction.  I don’t think they’re building these six houses all at once and it’s all going to be done and they’ll be out of there in three months.  This is going to seem to be an on-going process which is going to disrupt all that wildlife.  I don’t want my herons to go away.  I don’t want my herons to have to listen to all that construction going on, the trucks dragging stuff in and out, you can imagine the trees, the cutting of those trees.  This is going to take forever, the noise it’s going to make, it’s going to drive out a lot of the birds.  I’m going to probably lose my owls.  I don’t want that to happen and I realize you can’t make an omelet without breaking eggs but I’m looking at this and I’m saying “what is this?”  I don’t even know how it managed to get onto our private lane.  It seems to have a lot of waivers and Variances.  I don’t know what makes this developer so special that he gets all these things.  If it were me I couldn’t get that kind of special treatment.  I don’t see any hardship for this guy.  He doesn’t live there.  What makes him special that he gets to do all this?  Why can’t it just be the house or two houses that it’s zoned for and that’s it?  Why does he get all these Variances which will have an adverse impact on the quality certainly of the wildlife and the quality of what I’m the steward for?  I’d like a few answers to those questions and especially what they’re going to do about this pond and how they’re going to protect this?  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated for the record what’s proposed is consistent with the zoning of the area. 

Mr. Art Almeida asked is it consistent with the driveway?  Can they just build a driveway and just put as many houses that …
Mr. Steven Kessler responded the Board’s going to make a determination as to what’s appropriate.  

Mr. Art Almeida stated that’s for you guys to decide obviously.  I’m looking at it as a resident going – it just seems like something is amiss here.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated understood.

Mr. Art Almeida stated my concern of course is the pond and the wildlife there.  I’ve spent a lot of time being the steward of that pond.  I want to make sure that it stays pretty much as it is and the way I see it from all that I’m looking at, it doesn’t look like I’ve got a good chance of keeping it. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked anybody else wish to comment?

Ms. Phyllis Cobb presented herself to the Board and stated my family has lived on Upland Lane since 1948.  My mother who’s 93 still lives there and I just want to say that I’m very worried about the quality of life on the lane with six more families and traffic.  It’s always been a very quiet lane.  I’ve heard that they want to enlarge the road.  If that happens, right now where my mother parks here car won’t exist.  There’s just a nice quiet quality of life on that lane that I really worry is going to be destroyed by having this many more families and car traffic on the lane. 
Ms. Betty Laguzza presented herself to the Board and stated I live on 11 McGuire Lane which is just up the road from Upland.  I’m here to support my neighbor who’s concerned about his pond because that’s what good neighbors do.  On the other hand, I also wanted to point out while there is a better view up and down the road is still going to have some children coming up.  So when you make your plans or when you talk to whomever consider the fact that you’re not going to be building houses for senior citizens, they’re going to be families and as usual I’m concerned for the children. 

Mr. Charles Weinstock presented himself to the Board and stated I live at 43 Upland Lane.  On January 10th I will have lived there for 7 years.  My property is half a mile into Upland Lane.  Across the road from my property is a hill.  I own a small piece at the bottom and after that is part of this property in question here.  When I first moved into my house almost 7 years ago, there was flooding in front of the house very regularly.  There was flooding by my garage and a lot of flooding in the basement.  I’ve done a considerable amount to mostly mitigate that.  I am concerned that if trees are cut on this property that I will once again have a significant problem with flooding in those three areas.  I’m also concerned of the impact on my well and on my septic from cutting trees and the water effects.  I also share the concern – one of the reasons why we bought there is it’s a nice, quiet, rural lane and we would like to keep that character of the lane as when we bought it. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked where are you on this?  Are you off this map, I presume?

Mr. Robert Foley asked behind 3, are you behind lot 3? To the left?
Mr. Charles Weinstock responded to the left.  This is me right here. (showing on the map)

Mr. Ivan Kline asked you had run-off from the adjoining property?

Mr. Charles Weinstock responded yes I did have run-off.  I put drainage on the other side of the road.  I put drainage in my driveway in front of the house all trying to divert water to behind my house instead.  When it rains we used to able to actually see the water running down the hill if it rains steadily.  I’m definitely concerned about cutting more trees down. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked what does your house front on?  What road?

Mr. Charles Weinstock responded on Upland Lane.  It’s actually on Upland Lane, number 43.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I get it, it wraps around. 

Mr. Kyler Cragnolin presented himself to the Board and stated 226 West Mount Airy Road.  I’m up there on the hill.  I’ve been there 30 years as of this past January.  You’ve heard me speak on various environmental concerns regarding some of these projects in the past.  I have a lot of problems with this project.  I’m going to be brief tonight because I’m sure I’ll have an opportunity to flush out some of these issues as we move forward.  I have three basic concerns: 1) quite obviously is this issue, and I think there are a lot of people here tonight that will address this, that they’ve invested in a certain lifestyle on a quiet, private, country road, 8 to 10 feet wide, gravel and some hard top which naturally restricts the amount of traffic and the type of activity that you get.  The road is a big dictator on the environment in which these people live.  I see the concept of this project as something that violates a lot of the, maybe not hard and fast rules, but a lot of the parameters and recommended guidelines that the Town sets forth such as: cul-de-sacs not being longer than 500 feet.  Well, here we’re going to put a cul-de-sac more than twice that long at another few 1,000 feet down a narrow, private road.  It’s a housing development going into a very strange location and I see it in some ways very analogous to the Lakeview Estates project which has sort of languished for how long, 17 years now, because it was just not a good idea.

Mr. Ivan Kline responded 21, but who’s counting. 

Mr. Kyler Cragnolin continued long cul-de-sac back in the middle of nowhere, there are a lot of issues with that.  Fire safety being one of them.  I only think of that because the Cohen house shortly after I moved to the area, did burn to the ground one night, completely burned down and the fire department wasn’t able to do much about that.  I assume they would pump water out of Art’s pond if there was a fire up there.  That’s a little bit of local history.  In any case, we can talk further about the design aspects of it and the appropriateness of that sort of a development and that density in such a location.  The second thing are my environmental concerns.  This traditionally has been a very key piece of wildlife habitat, Upland habitat but a significant Upland habitat because of its proximity to this pond.  Tremendous amount of wildlife on the pond, a lot of amphibians there utilizing that and surrounding vernal pools in the spring.  A lot of people have to realize about amphibians is that they – you think of them as pond creatures.  The salamanders and the frogs are at the edge of the pond, well they are in the spring for a few weeks when they breed and then the rest of the year they are out and about through the woods, they are terrestrial creatures and they rely upon that wooded habitat for their survival.  When we’re talking about developing land to this extent, it just bores me to death and it troubles me reading about all these little band aids we’re going to be putting on it to make ourselves feel better because let’s just be honest and say we’re just eliminating this piece of land as any sort of viable wildlife habitat.  The record shows that small fragmented pieces of forced habitat are really not viable.  They’re not very useful.  Our whole thinking has evolved over the years to acknowledge that wildlife corridors are very important and this certainly is a key piece as far as a corridor between the Croton Arboretum and Valeria which serves as the hub of the wheel of which this is one of the spokes.  This is the north south spoke wildlife corridor which would include the Calabah Pond area, Torment Hill, the Briarcliff/Peekskill trail way, that whole corridor which has miraculously remained open space to this date and this would be a serious impediment to that in my estimation.  In more general terms why are one in five species threatened in some capacity?  Why are our birds, particularly our neo-tropical migrant birds at a 40 year all time low downward spiral?  I can tell you in two words the answer is habitat loss.  That’s why we’re losing our biodiversity.  If we decide to approve something like this let’s just be honest and say we’re going to weight things out and we’re going to decide to eliminate this as viable habitat and it certainly will have detrimental impacts on all the various creatures that inhabit that area at the present time.  They’ll either have to go elsewhere as they always do or disappear which is more likely what will happen.  The third thing and I think a real concern here is the hydrology and the hydrogeology of the area.  I think probably no one on the Board is a hydrogeologist or is a pedologist or glacial and Plasticine biologist but so you’re relying on these reports that are generated and I really don’t see the substance of what concerns me about this site in any of those reports.  That being that – and the key thing that you need to look at when you look at these maps is that the dividing line between the watersheds, between the Hudson watershed and the Croton watershed, cuts this piece exactly down the middle.  What does that tell us?  That means this piece is the high point.  This is the ridge of the roof so to speak.  As I’ve said, I’ve lived in the area for over 30 years and I do a lot of hiking and where you see – briefly, what the glaciers have done is scoured most of the soil off of the high ground around here.  If anybody has ever hiked down Blue Mountain, or Salt Hill, or Dickerson Mountain, or Torment Hill, when you get up on this ridge, on this high piece of ground, the soils are very thin and bedrock outcroppings are very common which tells us that there really isn’t much soil there in terms of depth and in terms of quality to allow for bioremediation of the type of non-point source pollution that these six homes are going to be adding to this area.  In other words, other areas have deeper soils, better soils and are better able to handle these sorts of toxins and pollutants and secondary enrichment from the septic systems.  Another interesting comment was that LCD didn’t find any springs on the property but if you drive up Mount Airy Road you see some remarkable features which I don’t see anywhere else in Croton.  You see spring houses, and springs all the way up the brook.  There is a spring house immediately below the entrance to Upland Lane just down hill, just to the west.  There’s a small pond there, a brook and a small pond, there’s a spring house there.  If you go beyond Upland Lane, one more lot over to the Cooney house, they also have a spring house which is just to the other side of that little wetlands there.  We have a lake on the top of a Mountain.  Now, how counterintuitive is that?  We have a lake on top of a mountain which is the last place you’d expect to find a lake, Lake Azevella.  Why is that?  Why is the lake up there?  Why doesn’t the water just run off?  Because, you have that bedrock under-layment.  The area is very sensitive to anything that we put in the aquifer.  I might also mention that a very important spring is located 50 feet from the property line on Mr. Neblo’s property and there used to be a spring house there for many years and sometime in the past five or so years that was taken down.  The spring is still there just the house around it has been removed.  There are a lot of springs which is indicating that there’s a lot of water coming to the surface.  There has to be a limit to the capacity of these natural aquifers to deal with these pollutants that we are constantly adding to them.   There has to be a cut-off point for the health of the ecosystem, for our own human health there have to be limits.  Part of sensible planning is recognizing that there are limits and I know this Board has won national acknowledgment for being on the leading edge of planning in this country and I applaud you for that and I encourage you very much to look at some of these issues and as I’ve said I’ll speak further on some of these points.  A lot of the talk in these reports was “we’ll establish a baseline and see what happens,” well once the project is built it’s too late to find out that we’ve made a mistake as far as I’m concerned.  I would conceptually and from an environmental perspective I would take a long, serious, hard look at this proposal.  Thank you.

Mr. John Neblo presented himself to the Board and stated from 23 Upland Lane and I believe I’m the newest resident of Upland Lane having moved in just 11 months ago.  As I don’t share some of my neighbor’s long standing love of the area, as a new resident I can attest that I selected the house at 23 which is the first property north of the developments.  This one right here.  I did select that home for the characteristics that have been described for the bucolic nature of the neighborhood and so forth.  Also, because of my location here, I think it’s fair to say that I’m probably the most directly affected on a daily basis by the potential project here.  I don’t know how familiar the Board is with the topography here, but the development it porches up on a hill and it slopes downward into my property.  Our backyard is all this right here and right now even with the land as it is, the thinnest of the soil, the clay-like quality of it and the slope means that after any kind of significant rainfall whatsoever in its present state, my backyard is boggy and we’ve attempted to remediate that with a drainage system with mixed results but clearly than from my perspective I’m very concerned that, as everybody else has mentioned, that the cutting down of the trees and the building of the homes will significantly impair the quality of the ground.  I’ll get more run-off, etc.  I’ve got that concern, I’ve got the concern with respect to obviously my well is right there as well, so septic and well, I’m not an engineer so I don’t profess to have any technical expertise in this area but naturally it is a matter of great concern.  In addition to just the environmental concerns that everybody else has voiced, the quality of the neighborhood, the character of the lane etc, I repeat all those, in addition to that, the fact that the water run-off is immediately – it will run into my property directly.  That’s clear as day.  The last point would be, it’s not clear to me and I apologize to the Board for not having undertaking this survey yet, I will between now and the next hearing, it’s not clear to me how the current driveway can be widen to a width of 18 feet without crossing onto my property.  Again, just looking at the plans and doing a tape measure measurement from the pond to my property line, it doesn’t appear that there are 18 feet available.  I’ll get a survey done in the meantime but that’s a question in and of itself how it can even be widen to 18 feet unless I were to sell or otherwise be compelled to grant some kind of easement to the developer.  I don’t want to belabor the Board I just wanted to get my concerns obviously as the most directly affected neighbor on the record and my more eloquent neighbors will – or more knowledgeable of the Cortlandt Planning Board can continue the argument.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated just for the record this Board did conduct a site visit on September 27th.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated two site visits.

Mr. Steven Kessler continued two site visits that’s true.

Mr. Lee Striesfeld-Leitner presented himself to the Board and stated I am a resident at 3 Upland Lane.  Before I make my own comments I wanted to mention that Mr. Frank Marrone from 6 Upland Lane could not be here tonight.  He has some written comments that I can read or I can just hand to you to enter into the record.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated when you’re done you can give it to the Board he’ll distribute them but if he wants to a future meeting I’m sure we’ll have the public hearing will be continued.

Mr. Lee Striesfeld-Leitner stated I wanted to comment in two different capacities, first I wanted to mention that this is the first meeting I’ve been to regarding this project and I have learned a lot about it here this evening.  I am especially concerned about some of the comments made by the last gentleman who spoke and previously by the representative of the Arboretum about some of what are perceived to be deficits in hydrology and hydrogeology and planning for water run-off.  I wanted to speak in my capacity as a member of the Croton Conservation Advisory Commission, more council rather, that I am concerned and that as it was stated some of this run-off, runs off into the Croton watershed.  I don’t know if Croton Village is aware of the potential impact of this project on Village watershed so I will be making a point of bringing those up with the Village and seeing how it may impact us and to what extent we should be involved.  I did want to echo what some of my neighbors have said as a resident of 3 Upton Lane that I’ve lived on the lane for six years and like many of us we purchased our homes specifically because we were attracted by the character of this lane as being a rural, someone used the word ‘bucolic,’ kind of back woodsy environment.  I am concerned by two things: principally one is the widening of the road.  Most of Upland Lane except of a flaring out at the very end where it meets Mount Airy, most of Upland Lane is only 10 feet wide, so the proposed widening to 18 feet is, you do the math, is almost a doubling of the size of the lane.  It’s an extreme change to the character of the land and I feel that it would be taking away from the value of our properties and the reasons we invested in those properties.  I see that as a taking and I’m a little bit confused in that the lane itself is a series of easements that we as property owners have access to.  It’s not clear to me how the Town or the developer can be given the wholesale right to widen without approval of the residents of the existing land owners.  It’s just a question I have. 
Mr. Ivan Kline asked do you know who actually owns that road?

Mr. Lee Striesfeld-Leitner responded it is unclear.  Somebody is going to have to go to the County record.  There was some originally a piece of property was subdivided and an easement was created and we all have rights to it but who actually owns it, I don’t know.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think we were told on the last site inspection that it was a public road between Mount Airy – maybe I misunderstood.

Mr. Lee Striesfeld-Leitner responded no, I looked at the title of my deed today and it is an easement. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I see it’s referred clearly as a private road in the papers we have but to have an easement, somebody has to own it.

Mr. Lee Striesfeld-Leitner responded yes.  Regardless of whether or not there is a right for the developer or the Planning Board to allow this road to be almost doubled in size without approval of the existing land owners, I would just suggest again that it severely changes the nature of that lane and I see it as a taking in a way and that it is diminishing the value of our properties based on our reasons for originally purchasing those properties and choosing that as a place to live.  I also would note that currently there are only 11 households on that lane and one of which is only occasionally used, it’s not a primary residence, so we only have 10 primary residences on that lane by adding six more we are again the math is pretty easy, it’s a 60% increase in the amount of traffic on that road.  Also, I see this as an extreme change in the character of that lane and see that also as a taking.  I do not begrudge the Cohen’s, the ability to sell their property and somebody to develop something else on it but I think this project in its size and scope is really inappropriate and irreparably harms the character of the lane to the detriment of those people who have purchased properties there.

Mr. Jeff Gordon presented himself to the Board and stated I reside at 241 Mount Airy Road West.  It never really occurred to me until this project came up that looking at Upland Lane where I drive down probably almost every day or every other day because my ex-wife lives at the far end at 47, she would be here tonight but she couldn’t make it and she objects to the development.  Driving down the lane I’ve never really thought about it this way but it sits precipitously on a ridge.  It’s akin to skyline drive in the Smokey’s if you’ve been there or going to the Sun Highway out at Glacier Park out west or even 202 as it winds down Bear Mountain.  If you think that what happens on Upland Lane doesn’t affect any properties down hill from Upland Lane, you’re very much mistaken.  My property sits down river from Upland Lane.  I’m not being facetious when I say that and I’m not talking about a 100 year storm.  I’ve got significant run-off issues with regard to the property that have really just been exacerbated in the past number of years and I understand – I’ve only been there since 2002, but when I bought the property from Mrs. Mogul who lived there for 30 years.  The landscaper kind of came with the house and he was telling me that he really didn’t see much in the way of a run-off problem until the last house which is I believe John’s at 23 was built several years ago.  Apparently, since that house was built I’m getting now significant run-off to the point where it’s coming down my property – until I put in a drywell – it was coming down my property hitting the back of the house and literally coming out the garage door and flowing down my driveway onto Mount Airy West.  It’s already started to shift the slate patio off of its foundation.  I put a drywell and I spent thousands of dollars trying to remedy the situation.  I thought I had it licked and I still have a bit of a problem and that was a result, I understand because I wasn’t there prior to the house being built, from one house and now we’re talking about putting in six houses with additional asphalt and widening of roads, putting in because of the topography and the soil content I would think either retaining ponds or culverts, something to retain that water, or drywells.  I don’t know.  All I can tell you right now I have significant problems with run-off on the property from Upland and initially when it really got to a point a couple of years ago of really being more than I can handle, I was surprised to find out that there was really no one in the Town that could do anything for me, although if there was a problem with egress or ingress for the purposes of fire protection and if the lack of maintenance of Upland Lane posed a problem to fire protection than certainly the Town would be authorized to come in and remedy the situation.  But, I was distressed to find out when we’re talking about run-off, the Town couldn’t help me and directed me to Upland Lane and I was surprised to find out that there’s really no homeowner’s association at Upland Lane to speak of that could address some of these issues.  But, if you go down Upland Lane there are numerous dips in it which is where this water from the area accumulates and then it just goes down the mountain and it goes into people’s yards, at least my yard.  And, even with, again with the drywell that I put in, I’m still seeing some dampness and water in my garage.  Listen, I understand having been a municipal lawyer early on in my career, it’s difficult to tell somebody they can’t develop their land but you need to do it with open eyes and open mind and I’m sure you all have that.  But, there are significant problems with regard to run-off from Upland Lane and not as a result I understand from one house, and now we’re talking about a significant greater development.  I can only think of the problems that that will cause.  Thank you.
Mr. Art Almeida stated 5 Foster Court.  I would just like to add about the pond.  Two things: 1) the pond is spring fed, so the idea that somehow there are no springs in that area is just completely false.  That pond is completely developed by a spring and I have a well house.  There are many well houses.  In fact, up in that area if somebody wanted to go up to do a count there are lots of spring houses and well houses.  The second thing is that the run-off from the pond, the pond does in fact fill up when it does rain in the springs, pouring lots of water especially in the spring, there’s a pipe that runs underneath Upland Lane which my pond drains underneath that pipe and sort of meanders its way over toward West Mount Airy there’s a, I guess it’s Marrone’s house, there’s a thing next to his, not a culvert I don’t know what you would call it, sort of a holding pond and it sort of continues to drain down.  It’s not as though the water there in my pond just sits in my pond.  That water moves down and is part of the collected water that goes into the basic watershed which ultimately goes into the Hudson.  Any kind of pollutants that go into that pond are not just staying in that pond, they’re moving.  The other thing which is really incongruous is that at the end of the driveway, of the road, or whatever they call it, they’re going to put up a dumpster for garbage?  I find that a little amazing.  It’s right near the pond.  The trash is going to be right there.  We’re going to have garbage right there?  That apparently is in the plan?  We’re going to get – the raccoons, everyday is going to be Thanksgiving Day for the raccoons that’s for sure.  The smells of this thing are going to attract all matter of wildlife, the birds are going to suddenly say “it’s garbage time.”  I don’t want large collections of crows now coming around.  We have enough problems with crows anyway.  I don’t understand where the garbage is going and who’s picking it up?  Anybody have an answer to that?
Mr. Steven Kessler responded we’ll get an answer.  

Ms. Ellen Irvine presented herself to the Board and stated I live at 7 Upland Lane.  I just want to reiterate what everybody else was saying.  We’ve lived there for 14 years.  My son was 4 when we moved in and it’s been great for children to grow up there they can play in the woods, walk on the street and ride their bikes and one of my main concerns, like everybody else’s, is how wide the street’s going to be.  I have to say I haven’t really looked at the plans but the next I come I will.  It’s just when we moved to Croton from San Francisco we lived in the Village but we wanted to live outside and that comes with its drawbacks as well.  When you’re kids are growing up you’re driving them everywhere.  They go to the Croton school so you’re driving them into the Village.  It’s just been wonderful to live there.  I’m wondering, also if the mailboxes are going to be down by where the driveway’s going to go up – I was under the impression that on a private lane that there was not allowed, that the mail people didn’t make deliveries on private lanes.  All of our mailboxes abut West Mount Airy.  At the beginning of the lane I understand that there are going to be trees that are going to be taken down there.  Part of the beauty of it is just coming in because it looks like a rural road and that’s going to really affect the whole look of it and the feel of it.  Just the quality of life.  The lane is small as it is and I think all of you who have been up there to do your walk through and you understand that it’s a small street and there are potholes, I can’t even imaging what is going to happen when the construction vehicles start coming in.  They’ll probably get stuck in the pot holes or something.  At any rate, it’s just food for thought. 
Ms. Joanne Whalen presented herself to the Board and stated I reside at 11 Upland Lane.  As you can tell from the turnout here, almost everyone from the lane who could be here this evening has been here to express our concern about this project going forward.  I’ve been on Upland for 19 years.  What attracted my family to Upland is what attracted everybody else on the lane.  The beauty of the lane, the quietness of the lane, there’s 11 homes on the lane, that’s it.  It’s a lovely community of friends that have developed on the lane and we don’t want to see that disturbed.  We don’t want the traffic.  We don’t want the noise.  We want the kids to be able to play in the road, the animals to be able to walk and to enjoy what we are there for.  We can’t impress upon you enough how valuable the quiet enjoyment of that lane is to all of us.  We treasure it and we want to preserve it.  This project is so astronomical for the amount of land and space available to bring it in.  The road is narrow.  It’s eight feet.  We have to go over to the side to let each other pass.  You don’t go zooming down the lane and nobody seems to have an idea of how you’re going to widen this lane to 18 feet.  We have a very large wall which you’d be into the wall.  Mrs. Kaplan’s concern is that she can’t park her car.  She doesn’t have a garage, she parks on the lane.  The rest of us just deal with the lane.  We understand the pros and the cons of it.  The problem with the macadam or contour of the lane, we have a lot of potholes, we do the best that we can.  We don’t feel that our area can take on a project of this magnitude.  You’re going up, you’re going to come right by the water and with regard to the pond.  I look at the pond.  The pond is absolutely spectacular.  For any of you that have the time to go, not only for your site plan, but just to go and see it.  The turtles are out in the good weather, sunning themselves on the rocks.  The herons, you can see the turtles.  There are monster snapping turtles in that pond.  It’s gorgeous.  It’s a treasure.  And, what is of great concern is you take the snow, the ice, the plows that are going to be going up the road and getting rid of the snow with the salt and the sand and where is that salt going to go?  It’s going to run down into the pond.  It’s going to wreck the habitat.  It’s exactly what it’s been said before.  You might as well just decide that the habitat in that area is gone if this project goes forward.  But, for the pond, I think you’ve all gotten a very good idea of the ecological effects which we feel are going to occur if this project goes forward and certainly there’s more studies to come.  We want to also emphasize the traffic.  You have six houses coming up there.  At a minimum, you’re going to have 12 cars, two cars a household.  That’s if you only have two cars.  If you have families which we’re anticipating there’s families, there’s going to be kids that are going to have cars and the traffic is outrageous.  That road, the area, it will completely change why we were there, why we are there.  We’re there so we don’t have to deal with that.  We don’t want to be living on 5th Avenue, or Madison Avenue.  We want to be on Upland Lane just where we are and living our lives as we have been, quietly, peacefully and without all this back-and-forth and worrying about the traffic and the noise.  The project is going to take a long time.  We’re going to have several years of construction.  If you guys have ever been in an area where construction is going on, they start at 8:00, by 8:00 in the morning they’re going all day, there’s noise, traffic, the whole nine yards.  That area, we’re not there for that.  We want to enjoy our homes.  That’s why we’re there and wanted to just thank you for listening to all of us voice our concerns.  We know that you’ll take it to heart and we greatly appreciate it. 
Mr. Steven Kessler asked any other comments?  Any comments from the Board?

Mr. Ivan Kline asked I’d just like to better understand who actually owns between Mount Airy and the entrance to the property?  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated a couple of quick and important things: first the road issue if of concern.   My client Mark Giordano is here.  We knew this issue would be of concern to the Board and I consulted with Mr. Giordano’s title company today.  The best information that I got and I’m waiting for a complete abstract on the road, it is a private road.  I don’t believe it’s owned by any one individual though I’m not telling you that to a certainty.  I certainly expect to be able to tell you that by the next meeting.  It is a private road.  There is a 40 foot right-of-way, as I was advised today, that extends from Mount Airy in towards our property, it then extends to 50 feet, I was told and there is a recorded agreement from a number of years ago that I’ve asked for a copy.  That agreement as well as common law allows my client as a property owner along that private road to improve it for suitable access. In addition, you have your own local law that allows your Department of Technical Services to review the roadway and make sure that it’s properly addressed.  We know we have to deal with this issue.  We know we have to deal with road safety and on behalf of Mr. Giordano I want to thank all the neighbors from Upland for coming out tonight and explaining their concerns.  We need to hear this.  We need to deal with them.  We have spent a lot of time, energy and effort with the Town’s professional consultants already.  I know you’re going to adjourn so we’re not going to address each of these issues this evening.  Suffice it to say Mr. Giordano is a private property owner and a tax payer.  He’s got certain development rights.  He’s very well aware of the beauty of the area.  That’s one of the reasons he secured this property and our development team is going to do everything conceivable to protect the beauty and the bucolic nature of the area.  That’s the type of development that’s been laid out.  This is not a high density.  This is a development that has been designed to achieve the same type of density and distribution as the surrounding area.  In the coming meeting or meetings, we will address storm water, we will address the road Mr. Kline, we will address road safety, certainly wildlife and habitat preservation have been things that we have spent the last two years doing studies.  The data has been submitted.  I’m delighted that Steve Coleman, the Towns’ wetland consultant has been very much involved in making recommendations to our team to revise this project as we address storm water and wetland protection.  Moving forward Mr. Chairman and members of the Board we look forward to working with you, with the neighbors.  I know we’ve already been working with Ms. Bernard and the Arboretum to address a number of hydro-geologic issues that have been addressed.  I’m very pleased that the Town went out and nipped the issue in the bud at my client’s expense and hired a hydrogeologist to address some of these important environmental issues right from the get go.  We look forward to appearing at the next meeting and Mr. Kline, at that point, hopefully if not in writing we will make a presentation at the meeting, but if I can give you a written explanation of the road and the rights and the obligations you will get that.  If any of the neighbors along Upland have title reports that differ with what my client’s title report indicates, namely private road with unquestionable easement rights in favor of everyone along Upland including Mr. Giordano, please let us know.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated it seems this is going to be a fundamental issue here of whether the easement right if it’s a commonly owned area which it sounds like it is, would give one of the owner’s the right to widen over the objection of others.  I think we’re going to have a legal issue for Tom to look at.  A predicate of your application is the ability to widen the road.  You’ve essentially acknowledged without that the road cannot handle the extra lots and if we’re going to have four other owners of this road saying “no I’m not consenting to this” and we’re just inviting a litigation.  It just strikes me that that’s got to be resolved upfront before we could consider a plan that we require.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated one of the reasons why I made my last comment about consulting their title companies; my title company, my client’s title company today told me we have ensured rights to expand that roadway to a suitable improvement necessary for the use of our property.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated unilaterally.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s a matter of New York State Common Law that if you’re on a road you have a right to improve it. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we can’t debate that here.  We’ll get council to take a look at that. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I would ask you to turn to Tom for an opinion so that we can wrap that up and Tom will certainly feel free to consult with our title company. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated as David said we’re going to adjourn this to our December 1st meeting.  Any further comments before we adjourn?  You’ll have an opportunity of course at the next meeting to speak again.  It can be a continuation of the public hearing. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it has been referred to the Village of Croton for their comments.

Mr. Robert Foley stated just a quick answer, on the October 1st letter from Mr. Coleman to Ed Vergano which is very detailed and thorough addressing a lot of the issues that were brought up tonight by the residents.  You’re responding basically to – you seem to preface each answer with a statement or a question.  In other words, in your report you’re answering or you’re just explaining issues that have been brought up in the past or that you anticipated?  The road width, widening, the site specific soil analysis.  Are you responding to a specific memo?  You seemed to have covered everything that’s been brought up that’s why I’m asking. 
Mr. Steve Coleman stated the first review that I performed was in July of 2008 and the response in October was a response to that memo reviewing the comments and revisions that the applicant had provided.  The October memo was an updated response that they’ve addressed or still had outstanding issues of the July ’08.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so you posed the questions in the earlier memo to them?  That’s what I’m trying to find out.  You’re responding to what?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded responding to further review of the revised plans and reports that have been submitted since July of ’08.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you reiterated the questions that you would ask that we had responded to in this memo.
Mr. Steve Coleman stated I did that more for clarification just in the memo.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked was there any further comments from the audience?  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adjourn this public hearing to our December 1st meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye."  
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OLD BUSINESS 
PB 7-09      a.
Public Hearing: Application of Congregation Yeshiva Ohr Hameir for Site Development Plan Approval , Wetland and Tree Removal permits and for a Special Permit pursuant to Section 307-50 of the Town of Cortlandt Zoning Code for a Seminary for the construction of a new on-site wastewater treatment plant and for the renovation/reconstruction of the existing Dodge City Building for classroom and dormitory space for property located at 141 Furnace Woods Road  as shown  on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan prepared for Yeshiva Ohr Hameir” latest revision dated June 18, 2009 prepared by Ralph Mastromonaco, P.E. and a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Dormitory Renovation/Reconstruction” prepared by KG&D Architects, undated (with a presentation date of July 7, 2009.) (STAFF RECOMMENDS ADJOURNMENT UNTIL DECEMBER FOR MEETINGS WITH NYSDEC & WCDOH)
Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’ll be very brief because I know you have your consultants here.  We’re very pleased that you have both Mr. Coleman and Mr. Emerick here.  I know they were retained by the Town.  Each of them has generated extensive expert opinion and generated written reports.  I’m also pleased that you have all been updated in your work session about a rather extensive meeting that was convened by Mr. Vergano and the Town together with the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC), the Westchester Department of Health (DOH), representatives of each, consultants for each as well as the applicant.  We had a rather detailed and comprehensive discussion about 10 days ago.  I think it resulted in a number of issues being clarified about the respective jurisdiction of the Town, the County and the State.  I believe there are still some technical questions.  I know some of the Board members raised during the work session which I was unable to address because it was a work session but I’m glad Mr. Emerick is here to address Mr. Bianchi’s concern about whether or not sub-surface disposal of even treated effluent is still a capability.  He’ll let you know what the County and the State told us in that meeting as well as what his report means and I know our consultants are here to address that comment as well if you still have that question once he completes his report.  We believe, at this point, that there has been a tremendous amount of empirical data that has been submitted.  I’m very pleased to tell you that at the end of that meeting with Mr. Bernard there and your Town attorney there and your Town Engineer there, I turn to all of the officials in that room and I asked “is there any reason that you would object to the Town of Cortlandt Planning Board adopting a Negative Declaration under SEQRA?”  And, not one regulator in that room raised an objection.  Each regulator in that room knows that we have done comprehensive, detailed empirical studies.  We have supplied that data to the Board.  We have answered the questions and we are poised now for the SEQRA process to conclude to allow the DEC to set draft SPDES Permit limits of effluent discharge for intermittent stream standards which will then allow us to go to the DOH and final design the sewage treatment plant which would then be reviewed by DOH and ultimately would be constructed in accordance with a resolution that your Board would adopt.  I believe you are poised to allow staff to complete the preparation of a Neg. Dec. and a resolution of approval with conditions and we look forward to discussing that with you because I believe you will have it before well in advance of your next meeting.  Other than that, we have our entire development team to answer any other questions.  We don’t believe there’s anything currently on the table that has been left unaddressed in terms of major issues.  There may be some…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but we do agree that it’s not their call whether there’s a Neg. Dec. issued by this Board or not, right?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no but they are involved agencies so under the SEQRA process they certainly…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked we appreciate their opinion but that it’s not binding?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded by no means is it binding but by all means is it instructive particularly since they’re the agencies with expertise as they discussed with your consultants.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked just as you’re instructive David?  Ed you want to brief us on the meeting that took place with the DEC and the DOH?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded the primary purpose of the meeting was really to discuss some of the technical issues that we’ve asked our consultants to opine on.  The environmental issues, the environmental impact, the down stream environmental impacts, the type of treatment plant that’s being proposed, whether or not we’re getting the proverbial Ford versus the Cadillac, what our rights are to what we can ask for and what should be in any eventual Negative Declaration: what we can ask for, what we can’t ask for.  As Mr. Steinmetz has noted, the issue about our jurisdiction was discussed.  We have both consultants here tonight and I think it would be appropriate at this point to have Kurt Emerick from HDR to discuss his findings.
Mr. Kurt Emerick presented himself to the Board and stated I’m a professional engineer.  I work for HDR Consulting Engineers.  I was retained by the Town of Cortlandt.  I prepared a report where I reviewed the design by Ralph Mastromonaco very preliminary design to be used to pursue permits to have a sub-surface disposal system installed for the Yeshiva.  Basically, my report had two pieces to it: the first piece was to look at what was done for sub-surface and whether or not sub-surface is a viable option and the second piece was to review the preliminary layout and flow plan that was provided by Ralph Mastromonaco for development of the waste water treatment plant.  Under the first part, just briefly, we reviewed where they had done testing.  We walked the site, we looked at aerials of the site, and we reviewed the actual data that came from the soil tests.  In general, I’ve been through several similar missions for several similar clients in Westchester County, three of them were funded by the City of New York and the client wanted to at all costs find sub-surface disposal as the final option.  Not that they’re the same but I will say that exhaustive studies in all those three cases yielded no ability to get rid of this amount of waste water where the design flow of 23,000 gallons that Ralph Mastromonaco came up with is conservative.  I think it’s an appropriate lead developed design flow.  Regarding the other applications that I’m talking about, when no expense was spared, and we had very similar types of soils, we were not able to successfully find appropriate locations for disposal of that type of amount of flow.  I would say in this case with the high land on the upper right hand portion of the site it’s very rocky, it’s very steep slopes, and there’s a lot of rock outcrops, very thin soils.  That area had not been exhaustively tested but common sense does lead one to believe that you’re not going to be able to find the amount of area necessary to develop an appropriate sub-surface disposal fields in those areas.  You’re then constrained as well by the wetland boundary which was shown on the maps and I’m sure it was appropriately developed, I think the Town’s consultant concurred with the line.  That leaves a few areas where they have developed sub-surface disposal areas.  There’s three or four of them that are already being used.  Those areas are failing.  Without going into exhaustive studies, my opinion is that it’s very unlikely that this property will support sub-surface disposal of 23,000 gallons a day.  It’s not closed book impossible but I would say it’s very unlikely.  Moving into my thoughts on the waste water treatment plant, again, it was a preliminary flow schematic that was presented.  Some cut sheets from manufacturer’s equipment and I looked at that just as an engineer to see what the level of robustness was, what some of the tankage, what it’s made out of, what would the longevity of a plant that was final designed utilizing the schematics that were laid out and I did make a few comments and suggestions in my report which I won’t go too deeply into.  I also attended the meeting with Ed Vergano and Town representatives, DEC, and Department of Health and the applicant and basically I have this to say about it: the context of the meeting is clear in that DEC and DOH have the responsibility to review and approve waste water treatment plant designs.  It is not the Town’s responsibility to do that and the DEC also has the monitoring enforcement responsibilities.  The Town’s interest is essentially covered by law by DOH and DEC.  That’s the general context of the meeting but there are issues that I think are fair for the Town to consider and they would be: first of all design decisions can affect the effluent quality, it can affect the plant reliability and it can affect the longevity of the plant.  Also, plant operations are critical to maintaining effluent quality and of course having no impact on their neighbors.  An issue I’m not as familiar with but it is something that I’d like to touch on and that is disclosure.  Disclosure of plant conditions as I understand it and I can be corrected by council, but typically the purview of the applicant and the DEC.  With those issues in mind, I have put out some possible suggestions for the Board to consider as potential conditions of approval of this site plan.  1) to a reasonable extent the Town – I think it would be reasonable and as long as the word reasonable is in this condition that the Town had the reasonable ability to review the design for the issues that I was talking about, the issues that would affect water quality, the issues that would affect plant longevity and the issues that would affect plant reliability.  The Department of Health has to address the basic standards.  I don’t want to get on legal ground here but I think it’s safe to say that those decisions that are made in design can affect the overall performance of the plant and the DOH is required to enforce the law and that’s it.  Issues of degrees of usability, or degrees of functionality, or degrees of treatment that this process undergoes, those issues are design decisions that are made by the Yeshiva.  The question is whether your council believes that you have some standing in those design decisions.  Another potential condition that I would suggest is that the Town have the restriction that it be a licensed plant operator.  To operate the plant you have to be licensed but if it’s a contract operator, that’s a third party, that might give the Board some comfort.  In other words, if let’s say the Yeshiva wanted to send someone to school or hire someone direct that has the license but they don’t have the subcontract with an entity who’s lifeblood is dependent on the reporting and maintaining their license as a part of a corporation with the proper insurances, etc, so a contract operator might be something you would want to consider.  I would imagine that’s the way the Yeshiva would go anyway.  Discharge monitoring reports are required to be filed with DEC.  One possibility is that those discharge monitoring reports be made available to the Town for information only, not for the Town to take any action but so that the Town is somewhat of a party to what’s going on there.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated Kurt we’ve agreed to provide all that to the Town, just so you know.
Mr. Kurt Emerick continued I also indicated that perhaps the Board would want to ask or reserve the right for the Town’s attorney to review the facilities operations contract and again to look at it with respect to disclosure I think is fair.  Along with that the Board may want to consider, and this is a condition that I was asked this evening to consider and I have been rolling this one around in my head a little and that is to reserve the right for an annual inspection by the Town on their behalf again for the Town’s information only so that for the Town to be able to be sure that they’re comfortable with the condition assessment that’s being made by the DEC.
Mr. John Klarl asked is annual frequent enough?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded I think annual is frequent enough if the DMRs are disclosed because what DMRs are going to tell you what the plant is putting out in terms of effluent, but the things like if there is sloppy housekeeping, if there is equipment that may be getting on the verge of giving up, you’re not going to see that in a discharge monitoring report, but it’s not going to appear on a frequency that’s much beyond a year.  You’re going to be able to see whether the equipment is…

Mr. Ed Vergano asked are those issues the sloppy maintenance, the conditions of the equipment, are those issues that are typically reviewed by the County under the State?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded the State is – the DEC has the discharge monitoring report.  I have to admit that most of my experiences in New York City watershed so some of the responsibilities are shared with New York City DEP.  Outside of the watershed I believe that the DEC is the only agency that is required to provide the discharge monitoring reports, I may be wrong on that. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked again, that’s just…
Ms. Doyle stated Health Department is the [inaudible 92:43] agent
Mr. Kurt Emerick responded so it’s the other way around?

Ms. [inaudible 92:46] right.
Mr. Kurt Emerick stated DOH does it on behalf of DEC.  
Mr. John Klarl asked as an agency for the State?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded yes.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that relates to the actual effluent, the quality of effluent discharged.

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded that’s correct.  Those reports – the DOH also does annual inspection. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated inspecting the equipment itself to see whether or not the equipment itself is aging or is in need of repair. 

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded most of the reports that I’ve seen don’t get that deeply into it.  What I’m suggesting is that on behalf of the Town an inspection that focuses more on preventative then you must bring that back up – if something slipped out of standard or if there’s something that’s eminently a problem or something that is broken and maybe you have four processes and they’re redundant and one’s not working quite right, that may not be caught during an inspection.  It may be as well.  These are reasonable what I’m suggesting I think are reasonable.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked could you come up with a protocol for yearly inspections?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded sure.

Mr. Ed Vergano continued and then testing of equipment?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded yes.  I think that’s the way it would have to be implemented is with you’re comparing it to what the DOH inspections are as well.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked is there something unique about this plant or this proposal that would you believe make that appropriate?  I could ask Ed first.  Do we do this for any existing plants?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded no but the existing plants have been in operation for decades.  

Mr. Ivan Kline asked intuitively that would make it all the more important to me inspecting the equipment because the equipment is old but we don’t do it.  I’m thinking back to what we just approved for Valeria and we certainly did not impose this on the owners of Valeria.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded Valeria was an existing plant. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated we approved the expansion of it. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated true.

Mr. Kurt Emerick stated you’re right and I think your council is an important resource in determining.  I’m putting out ideas that seem to me to be able to address your concerns about continued effluent quality and also that to me seem reasonable and seemed to add value.  I think these are suggestions that would add value to the owner as well as the Town. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Kurt is there a way to test the equipment other than to operate it as we’re going to be doing in providing weekly reports and daily reports?  In other words, I don’t understand why we’d be testing equipment that’s obviously operating and were generating written reports as you’ve indicated in your third item: monitoring reports. 
Mr. Ed Vergano responded I would draw the analogy with a car.  You would have a car inspected and tested and serviced periodically.  I would imagine the same thing could be done with the mechanical equipment at a treatment plant. 

Mr. Kurt Emerick stated the DMR’s focus on water quality, effluent quality and eminent danger of equipment not being able to maintain that.  This would be something that might help.  When the plant gets built it will have operations and maintenance manuals.  It will have standard operating procedures, etc.  The DMRs don’t go quite in depth to make sure that – they make sure there’s an OM there but they don’t take the time, they can’t with their restrictions, they don’t take the time to go a little more in depth.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked do they check the backup generator?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded yes.  Backup generators is exercised weekly.  That’s the industry standard and there’s records that are – that’s a good example of something that…

Mr. Ed Vergano asked but fluid levels in the motors and oil levels and what have you that’s something that’s part of routine maintenance?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded what happened is the DMRs, the inspection by the County would look at the records that the operator would keep for that type of thing.  This annual inspection, the frequency of annual shows that what we’re really doing is – for example in the watershed DEP also conducts an annual inspection in addition to…
Mr. Ed Vergano stated we’re outside of the watershed here though. 

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded I know but what I’m saying is it’s when another agency has an interest that’s what they do.  What I’m suggesting following that precedent there may be, and again, based on what legal council feels, that may be a reasonable condition of this approval to have a second –and perhaps the details and the protocol for that inspection could be detailed and compared to what the Health Department hopefully is a little more comprehensive. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked could that be a Permit condition if and when this Neg. Dec. would occur and we were to add conditions to that Neg. Dec.  Is that something that the DEC or the Health Department adding to the Permit?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded I think that would be unusual.  I don’t see them taking that step.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what I’d like for you to do is tell me if I’ve got this straight in my head.  They have to come as an applicant asking us for permission to move forward with this project.  We give them permission and then, in a sense, we have to step back and allow the DEC and the Department of Health to monitor what they do for the life of this plant.  We can’t do anything if we see anything that we don’t like.  We have to trust that DEP or DEC rather and Department of Health are going to step in and do something?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded that’s correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the Department of Health certainly is responsible for the way in which people, residents, or businesses, deal with the septic tanks.  This thing became a real monster and who was on the job being sure that they were doing what they were supposed to be doing?  Why should I trust that they’re going to do any better than they have done with this?  

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded it’s almost a rhetorical question.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded this is a question I have.  Somewhat but I can’t begin to see that they’re going to have this plant that no one in the Town has any real authority over except just to get reports for our information.  If you get reports for your information and you can’t do anything what’s the point?  I’m sure we’d like to know but the point is you want information so you can take action.  If you can’t act…

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded the enforcement action is appropriately held by the DEC.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated true.

Mr. Kurt Emerick continued the SEQRA process does allow you guys to – this is your shot at regulating them beyond DEC’s and DOH’s requirements, however your legal council I’m sure will advise you that those restrictions have to be reasonable and they have to recognize who’s authority under which they’re building this plant.  I don’t want to go too much more, again I’m not a lawyer, but in the end I think you have a lot of concerned neighbors and I know you guys have heard it a lot and these are ideas for you to explore with legal council and myself if you’d like to sit down and talk about it in more details I’d be glad to.  I think they add value for the Town and you don’t want this information to come to you in any other way than for your information because the action is taken by the DEC.  You don’t want to set something up where you’re obligated to then become a secondary regulator. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if they don’t act, what do we do?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded there’s plenty of processes there.  The authority rests with them so you go to an authority like you would with any other authority, the Department of Transportation for example regulates ingress and egress off of State roads.  If you have issues with the curb cut-off of the Department of Transportation you will go to them and you will talk about it and you’ll probably resolve it but in the end the action is taken by the Department of Transportation.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I understand.  I’m not trying to put you on the spot.  I’m just saying these questions are in my mind.  Something went awry when this septic system failed and it’s been failing for a very long time.  it didn’t just happen last week or last month so if someone were on the job doing his or her job it seems to me that they could have nipped this a long time ago instead of letting it build and build and build where it gets to the point where now they have to have a situation like the one they’re in, building this plant.  I don’t know who was responsible but I do know based on all the work we do here we have to turn everything over – we don’t get it but we know that the Department of Health steps in and takes over from the point where we approve a particular project.  I’m assuming that they have a lot of power and clout to make people conform to the regulations and for some reason this thing got way out of hand.  My question, and again, you can’t answer this, but somebody was not doing something that they should have been doing if you ask me.  It shouldn’t have gotten this far. 
Mr. Kurt Emerick stated one point of information to that subject is once someone has a SPDES Permit, the sub-surface disposal doesn’t have the reporting requirements anywhere near the reporting requirements the licensed operator requirements that something with a SPDES Permit requires.  You’re basically going into a much more intensive requirement of reporting and of operation than was previously existing.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated by sub-surface you were referring to the septic when we had the septic system?  I just want to make sure that that is clear.

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded yes. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated briefly put then, sub-surface disposal systems once they’re built and approved, they’re pretty much on their own.  

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded right.  They don’t have the reporting requirements of something with a SPDES Permit. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the DEC was not getting data on a regular basis.

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded no.

Mr. David Steinmetz continued and the Health Department was not getting data on a regular basis.
Mr. Kurt Emerick responded I don’t believe that there’s a requirement for it.

Mr. David Steinmetz continued but in this situation both the DEC and the…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked clarification on sub-surface drainage your report says that it’s not feasible to use that approach here.  Should I replace the word sub-surface with septic system?  Because, then later on you say “as a pre-treatment the existing system can be used to reduce load and then maybe the effluent discharge level.”  Could you clarify those?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded a sub-surface treatment system consists of septic tanks which actually there’s quite a bit of treatment that occurs in the septic tank as well as solids and floatables they settle out.  Those septic tanks then after the septic tank is a sub-surface disposal field and Yeshiva has quite a few different configurations.  To call it a septic, some are galleries, some are traditional four-inch pipes with stone around them.  All of those generically are sub-surface disposal fields and then the septic tank is the mechanism by which you get primary treatment, solids, floatables.  The floatables get caught in the baffle and the solids settle out.  You get significant treatment in the septic tank so that was what the report was referring to the actual septic tanks could be retained for a pre-treatment.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked that would be piped into a waste water plant and would that have the effect of reducing the discharge volume in any way?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded no, the volume – because once it’s full what comes in goes out.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked it enables a smaller plant maybe?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded no. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so what’s the advantage of it other than…?
Mr. Kurt Emerick responded you knock down some of the BOD, some of the pollutants as well as some of the larger items that could gum up a process.  For example, you may not need to put in a screening or something to get the rags and floatables and things like that, they would be caught in the septic tank.  It would simplify the process perhaps.  It’s just an option.  Waste water plants have many, many steps.  This is one option that might be useful.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked in your report you had some concerns about something being undersized in the current design?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded I’d have to call the current design preliminary and I don’t recall…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the filters are undersized I believe you said.

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded I do not recall saying that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on top of page 9, 4.25.

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded that was my associate Karen, she caught that.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and you stand by that?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded yes. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you also had some concerns, for the lack of a better term, the order of operation of the plant?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded it’s a reasonably complex number of unit processes.  It might be able to be simplified.  It’s not a process that I’m that familiar with.  I would not say that it’s one that I see a lot but I think those details are really what we’re saying that I know the engineers for the applicant, those are the type of things that I know they’re looking to talk about and work out.  They’re at a very schematic level at this point. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but ultimately that’s going to be the DOH and the DEC?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded that’s correct. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked any other questions from the Board?

Mr. John Bernard stated just one comment that was made at that meeting with the DOH and the DEC, somebody brought up the point that the fiberglass tanks may want to be looked at to perhaps take a look at that design and use a different material.  I assume pre-cast concrete or something.  It sounded like the concern was, although it wasn’t spoken, might be that underground fiberglass tanks have a tendency to float to the surface.  

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded they do have design considerations for buoyancy with anti-floatation collar is incorporated into the fiberglass tankage.  

Mr. Tim Miller stated concrete pad.
Mr. Kurt Emerick continued and an anchorage.  That’s often something that needs to be looked at during the design is the main thing.  The fiberglass tankage is certainly the potential for problems with fiberglass tankage versus concrete tankage is higher.  The incident of failure of fiberglass tankage is higher than with concrete by quite a bit. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you say the stream water quality would improve after the construction of the new waste water treatment plant?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded I do believe that.

Mr. Steven Kessler continued but there’s really nothing going into the stream right now.  It’s going into a sub-surface system. 

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded I know but as you know kind of almost to the subdivision that you were talking about previously that surface water and ground water, especially down in the wetlands there start to become indistinguishable so the system is receiving the flow.  It’s getting its way, some of it to the stream, maybe not over land but it’s making it to its low point in that system.  The system’s receiving the flow now. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it’s receiving the flow through the sub-surface filtration for sure.

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded and some of it because it’s failing is flowing over land, etc.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that was the point that I made is that whether it’s being discharged through a waste water treatment plant or being discharged through a working sub-surface treatment plant it’s still going to the ground and it still travels where it’s going to travel based on gravity and flow.

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded sub-surface you don’t see as much of it, it soaks into the ground but it does eventually make its way into that system.  Whether it daylights and becomes part of the stream that’s a detailed analysis.  The system is receiving the flow now. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked are you saying with the design of the plant that that would preclude most or all of that using the waste water treatment plant?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded that attachment is receiving storm water, rain, run-off from adjoining properties so that’s not going to go away.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but from the Yeshiva’s site?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded what will happen is the water from their collection system it’ll be just sanitary for domestic use.  That will all be collected and then conveyed directly to the stream.

Mr. Robert Foley asked also on page 11 about the this was brought up by the public and the neighbors, since the MBR is housed on the inside as you say, you say “odor control can be added if deemed necessary.”  So, that’s something that would be determined after the plant’s in operation if there are problems?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded during design what will happen is the unit processes that the engineer proposes will be – different unit processes have different potential for producing odors.  Depending on where they are they’ll be compared to a table of how the distance is to the nearby receptors and if you’re not far enough away from receptors then you will have to make provisions to control the odors.

Mr. Robert Foley asked if there is a problem how long would it take to correct it?  Does the plant have to shut down?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded again, during the design phase, I don’t know enough about the neighbors and how far the separation distance, etc and exactly what unit processes in the end are settled on.  I didn’t review this for odor control.  What we’re saying is with an enclosed building odor control is far more easy to implement than if you had outdoor tankage let’s say.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but you also had a concern with the current design that there was a potential for more odors?

Mr. Kurt Emerick responded yes, again that’s getting more deeply into the details.  I think the procedure would be if the Town continues to assert an interest in this is to have some sort of update as you hit design milestone or some sort of input into the design, you know what I’m saying, because there’s a very preliminary flow schematic that was produced.  There’s certainly nothing in the order of construction drawings or anything.  It’s very conceptual at this point.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked anything else?  Thank you, I appreciate your help on this.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we also hired an environmental consultant Steve Coleman to address down stream issues.  I’d like for Steve to summarize his latest report.  I think it’s dated November 2nd.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked the October 18th, is that the one we’re talking about?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded the November 2nd is the latest.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked we received that this evening right?

Mr. Steve Coleman stated I’ve been working on the Yeshiva property since 2006.  I originally flagged the wetlands on the property and then was also brought in by the Town in 2007 to look at failing septic systems and also potential new locations for new septic fields to try to continue to get viable septic fields at the site.  I’ve also done quite a bit of biodiversity studies within the area so I have a pretty good familiarity of the issues associated within that particular watershed.  Based on my review, I think one of the primary impacts to the wetlands on the property is because of the failing septic systems and the inability to do sub-surface treatment at that site.  I think the wetlands have been compromised through the years because of their failing septic system and the high water table.  From an environmental standpoint I think the treatment facility really provides the best mitigating measure to protect in the long term function and viability of the wetlands that are on the property.  With our meeting that we had with DEC we changed some of the strategies for mitigation and the building itself and any of the related structures are within the 100 foot setback to the wetland of the property.  The majority of the building will be built within the buffer so DEC and the Town normally requires mitigation to replace that square footage of impact and what DEC has recommended which we concur with is the wetland itself and the buffer areas from the history of land use of property, there was a lot of failing debris that’s been deposited within the wetland and buffer areas.  Part of the strategy would be to actually have the applicant identify the amount failed areas and actually go in and physically remove a lot of the failed material debris from the wetland and buffer area.  The benefit of this is that it will restore the wetland back to more of its original parent soils and allow it to function more as an intact wetland.  In combination with that we’re recommending that they reseed with appropriate native wetland seed mix to give more habitat diversity and restore that area and improve the filtration capability.  The second thing is the remaining buffer that’s located adjacent to where the facility will be built is important in terms of attenuating some of the flood control and also in providing extra space or the term buffer is where it comes from for allowing the wetland to expand or reseed on a yearly basis.  One of the strategies would be to recommend some type of permanent demarcation whether it’s a split-rail fence or boulders to have a permanent establishment of where that buffer line would be.  The buffer should remain a natural state meaning that it would no longer be mowed or enhanced or supplemented with additional plantings or shrubs or ground covers or native grasses within that area.  Those are the type of mitigations that’s been recommended to help deal with improving the natural function ability of the wetland by doing a pretty significant restoration effort of removing debris from prior land use activities.  Any other questions?
Mr. Steven Kessler asked any questions from the Board?

Mr. Robert Foley asked in other words your three bulleted recommendations for mitigation on the last page, those then would all be handled or controlled by Yeshiva or in conjunction with the DEC and/or the Town?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I think it would be both because it’s a State wetland but it’s also a local wetland as well so the Town would have oversight as well as New York State DEC and through the SEQRA I think the Town traditionally would want to see protective measures and this could be restrictive conditions of the Permit and approvals that are granted for the site plan component of the application. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Steve you may not know.  After the DEC meeting we already implemented some changes and submitted that, filed that with the Board in advance of today.  So, the no mow area, the fencing, the landscaping that DEC recommended.

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I had not seen the plan but I think that’s great that they’ve been responsive in that direction. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you submitted that today you said?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that was submitted two weeks ago.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the plan from Mastromonaco?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked Miller’s?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded it’s on the screen before you, with the fence, with the no mow, the reseeding.
Mr. Steve Coleman stated not having seen the plan but they’ve discussed and addressed what appears to be all of the recommendations that I had.  That’s very intuitive on their part to do that. 

Mr. John Bernard asked Steve, how would you go about taking a baseline sample at the Yeshiva and then downstream from the Yeshiva so that we could establish a baseline of water quality?
Mr. Steve Coleman responded water quality?

Mr. John Bernard asked is there a point at which you could do that?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I think the most useful thing – during my understanding of what the treatment facility itself there will be ongoing requirements for water quality testing. 

Mr. John Bernard asked is there a place where we can take baseline samples?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded definitely on the site.  With the stream channel what might make sense is to establish a baseline of what the existing condition is within the stream and then take it where the discharge point will be for the effluent and you can monitor those two.  As far as outlets beyond the Yeshiva property, it might make sense to do the stream that enters the property and then exits it and establish a baseline in those two points because effluent will be in the middle of that so you can monitor and determine whether there’s a net change.  My review of the stream system is it’s pretty degraded right now with really high nutrient levels.  I would anticipate with the increased effluent having it be relatively clean drinking standard type water that that might help to flush and actually improve the overall quality of the stream.  It’s hard to control outside influences with the storm water and run-off and influences that enter the property.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked Steve, the treatment plant itself, maybe this is also a question for Kurt, appears to be in a not studied FEMA 100 year flood zone.  How would that impact your recommendations?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I believe that if it is in the flood zone you’re elevating the structure so that it’ll be outside to meet the FEMA standards so the building itself would be elevated so that it’s not under the influence of the 100 year storm.  I think the combination of the restoration of the wetland area, that should increase the potential volume and storage capacity of the site to absorb any other flooding conditions that may occur.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked so that would be the swap that we were speaking about at the meeting where if there’s 100 year flood volume that’s being displaced we don’t want to displace that flood volume off site to keep it on site we’d have an available area. 

Mr. Steve Coleman stated I think the removal of the fill is a means to try to work towards that end is to provide some of the displacement. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked any further comments?  Steve, thank you for your help as well.  Just one other item for the record, we received a letter from the Supervisor Puglisi dated November 2nd expressing her concern that we reopen the public hearing to the public once we’ve got enough information and of course we’ll take that under advisement and maybe a motion to receive and file that letter would be in order?

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to receive and file, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated to your earlier point David I think we’re close to deciding on a Neg. Dec.  We’re not quite there yet is that fair to say?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s fair to say.  We certainly want to work out the conditions.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so we’ll bring this back for the next meeting?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated in the interest of trying to move it along can we at least instruct that there be a Neg. Dec. prepared with the conditions that we can review and if ready adopt it at the next meeting?

Mr. John Klarl responded the way we set it up, Ivan, the applicant was preparing a Neg. Dec. in the next week or so.  We were going to start that from that document.  So, yes that would start the ball rolling.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked anything specific you’d like to see in there Ivan at this point while they’re drafting this?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we’ve got pretty good notes of what we think.

Mr. Ivan Kline responded I think it sounds like…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’ll be easier for us to react to things.  So, you’ll work with staff over the next month?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we’ll work with staff and I’ve already told staff that I would recommend we probably meet between now and the meeting so that that can be hashed out and what we would request is that at the December 1st meeting that there be a Neg. Dec. resolution in front of the Board.  Quite frankly, based on the conversations that I’ve had, what I’ve witnessed tonight, and certainly what I saw from your consultants, we would also recommend that a resolution of a site plan approval be presented at the next meeting with conditions because they seem to be interrelated.  At the work session somebody mentioned that now we’ve gotten to a point where the Neg. Dec. and the resolution approval have dovetailed.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked let me ask you this question David, there seems to be issues or concerns about the exact size and configuration of this sewage treatment plant or the waste water treatment plant, so how do you do a site plan with that being unresolved?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded very easily.  The same way I think you’ve done it on everything else you’ve approved that’s a waste water treatment plant in the Town, including: Triglia, and including Valeria.  You’ve never designed the details of the plant.  You’ve never asked the questions about those plants that you’ve talked about and for good reason you’ve had an exhaustive inquiry because of the public input, because of your Board’s maybe heightened concerns because of the public’s input.  But, I must tell you, as we learned at the meeting of the DEC, the DOH and the Town, those design issues are going to be mandated by the DOH.  Your role, John you were there, you saw what they told us, your role as I told you at the first meeting when maybe you didn’t believe it, but I think we’ve come full circle your role is predominantly the location of this plant.  Its impact on the wetland and the wetland corridor we’ve analyzed.  Whether we’re going to have to meet DEC intermittent stream standards you’ve now learned.  Your role is to locate the plant.  Your site plan resolution is going to be to locate the plant safely.  You’re going to impose a number of environmental mitigation measures which your consultants, the DEC and the DOH have all educated us on.  That’s going to be in our Neg. Dec.  Believe me it’s in my client’s interest at this point that your Neg. Dec. be airtight, be strong and be absolutely defensible because we spent a lot of time, effort and money to make sure that you’ve gone through the process exhaustively.  At this point, it’s in our interest that whatever you adopt it sticks and it’s strong.  As far as the details of the design I think you’ve heard Kurt tell you tonight, that’s going to be an ongoing process in front of DOH.  There’s no reason that reports can’t be sent to Ed and Ed’s obviously going to be involved with Lenny Myerson’s office.  He met all of the regulators 10 days ago.  He knows exactly who’s going to be looking at the size of the pumps and the size of the filters, etc.  There is no reason that we’re aware of why this Board cannot act on a resolution of site plan approval at the next meeting.  You’ve got to do the Neg. Dec. first. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I guess we need to know exactly what we’re instructing here.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded we’re going to refer back and have staff work with the applicant on the Neg. Dec.  We still have the open issue of the re-opening of the public hearing which we can deal with also at the next meeting. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’ll make that the content of my motion then, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Mr. Chairman can you at least respond to my client’s request that you address the resolution of approval as well?  At least let us know what you’re…

Mr. John Klarl asked for site plan?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes.  Just so we know where we stand.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think we need to have a further discussion whether we’re going to re-open the public hearing or not pursuant to the Supervisor’s request.  That discussion has not taken place yet.

Mr. John Klarl asked so you’re saying Neg. Dec. the next time?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded I heard that and that was the resolution, I got that.  Is there any reason tonight that you’re aware of just so as we walk out on November 4th, is there anything that’s come before you at this point that requires the re-opening of the public hearing?  Your consultants have all responded, nobody’s raised an issue of concern, nobody has stood before you tonight Mr. Chairman and said “there’s a gaping hole in the environmental or empirical analysis.”  In fact, what I heard tonight is what I heard from Kurt and Steve in front of the DEC and the DOH 10 days ago, I’m not trying to be difficult Mr. Chairman and members of the Board.  What I’m trying to do is get to the end of the process. 

Mr. Steven Kessler responded we’ve got to take under advisement to Supervisor’s request, that’s all.  I’m sure you can appreciate that.  Maybe not.  Is that a yes?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’ve had discussions with..

Mr. John Klarl stated looks like a Neg. Dec.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I heard the Neg. Dec. Mr. Klarl.

Mr. John Klarl stated no that you gave them a Neg. Dec. to his question. 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I have no jurisdiction over Mr. Kessler, he knows that, some other day somewhere else maybe.  For tonight’s purposes – my concern is that I’ve had discussions and the Board should be aware that we’ve already had discussions about conditions for the resolution of approval as well.  I don’t want to have a conflicting understanding.  I’d like to spend some time and energy dealing with that as well.  There are certain things that I think your Board really wants to do that actually end up being conditions of the approval, not really conditions in the Neg. Dec.
Mr. Ivan Kline asked let me ask you a question from what we have heard for months.  The urgency is to get the Neg. Dec. to get the process moving of getting the SPDES Permit and the ultimate approval of this plant which will have the favorable impact on the environment there from what we’re being told.  Doesn’t the Neg. Dec. by itself accomplish that for you?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded it accomplishes an awful lot Mr. Kline, there’s no question about it.  It allows us to finally go to the DEC and get our SPDES Permit draft limits.  What I’m unclear on is why the Board would continue to hold over my client’s head a resolution of approval if there’s nothing left to be done relative to the location of the plant, the wetland impact.  You’ve got your wetlands consultant here.  If Steve Coleman was appearing in front of you tonight, Ivan, telling you “we haven’t adequately mitigated.”  His summary of his report actually tells you: the sooner we build the plant, the better the wetlands are.  I’ve been here for six months trying to get a wetlands Permit.  I want to improve the wetlands.  All I’m trying to do is everything that I read in your purposes clause of the wetlands Ordinance.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I understand that.  That’s why I asked the question whether as a practical matter whether there’s a resolution granting site plan approval next month or the following month, does that have an actual impact on the ultimate timing of the improvement at the site?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that I have to turn to our engineers.  Delaying in the Neg. Dec. delays the SPDES Permit.  Is there anything that DOH or …

Mr. Tim Miller stated it delays the design in place.  You can’t design the plan without the SPDES Permit.
Mr. David Steinmetz responded right, I understand that.  Is there anything the delay of the site plan approval would result in?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated they’re thinking too hard.  The answer’s no.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Rabi Rothberg and Mr. Miller remind me that the sooner that they have a resolution of approval the sooner they can actually obtain the funding necessary to build the plant which we’re all seeking to get approved.  Absent of a resolution we can’t secure the funds.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how long do you see the process to get approval of the plant from the regulatory agencies?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded in front of the DEC, the SPDES Permit?  I think we were told, once we submit the neg. dec. to the DEC, one to three?  Somewhere between a one month to three month period in front of the DEC in connection to the SPDES Permit issuance.  Your resolution of approval, so I’m not unclear, obviously is conditioned upon the receipt of a SPDES Permit.  We can’t pull a built.  I know that and all we’re trying to do is complete the planning review so that we can move forward. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated noted.  Did you make a motion?
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I made some motion.  I think on the question the issue arose why are we holding open… 

Mr. John Klarl stated and Ivan heard some discussions so that’s the substance of my motion, I think we’re on the question but I defer to…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can we get a second to Ivan’s motion?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I thought you already did.  I think you’re done.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated this was just post…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because I was going to raise the question if you wanted me to do something with a resolution for the next meeting but I didn’t, but then Mr. Steinmetz did.  But, I don’t think it was on the question, I think it was after. 

Mr. John Bernard asked could we have a resolution for the next meeting and still consider the Supervisor’s letter?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded I think that makes sense.  We could all think about it further.  Otherwise, I’m not aware of what else it is we’d be waiting for. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I can draft a resolution.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I understand there are certain issues, conditions and so forth that are part of the plant, but I think we’ve gone through those in the past.  I don’t think there’s any real mystery to ask them.  It will just require a little more work to go back and prepare that separate from the Neg. Dec. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s the Planning Board’s call if you feel that sufficient discussion has occurred regarding the other issues.  Aside from the treatment plant, pedestrian access, vehicular access and what have you. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated personally I think we’ve beaten it to death but that’s just my view. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so what will this resolution do?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded a wetlands Permit amend a Special Permit grant site plan approval to allow us to renovate the Dodge City building and erect the sewage treatment plant precisely where Steve and Kurt have concurred we’ve designed it appropriately and mitigated the impacts. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but we’ve had no discussions about what might be in that resolution?  We’ve talked about a Neg. Dec.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we have.  John’s got them on the back of his manila folder because every time I sit with him he runs through the conditions.  He’s got it right there. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I would think there would be a draft resolution it doesn’t necessarily means that you’re going to adopt it.  You’re getting into length of the Special Permit, the process if ever you want them to come back, monitoring fees, a whole variety of standard conditions.
Mr. Ed Vergano added securities.

Mr. John Klarl stated at the applicant’s request maybe we can make a motion to clean up the record is to have an initial draft Neg. Dec.  An initial draft site plan resolution and we start working from there.  We have a baseline resolution.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated clearly there’s going to be a lot of review of that voting next month.  The chances of that being voted on at the next meeting I don’t think are very good.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you never know Tom.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated let me go back and modify my motion so as to ask staff with the applicant to work on the Neg. Dec. for the next meeting and at the same time please prepare the initial draft of what would be the site plan approving resolution so the Board can at least start a consideration of that.  That’s my motion, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 13-05    b.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement latest revision dated August 5, 2009 by  Kirquel Development Ltd. for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 22 lot major subdivision of 52.78 acres of property located on the west side of Lexington Ave. and at the south end of Mill Court as shown on a 10 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development and Subdivision for Residences at Mill Court Crossing” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated September 22, 2008.

Mr. Peter Lynch presented himself to the Board and stated I’m the attorney for Kirquel Development.  As you know we were here back on July 14th reviewing comments on a proposed final environmental impact statement and subsequent to that meeting, my client hired Tim Miller to reformat the final environmental impact statement into a more workable document so that the issues could be more clearly identified.  That was submitted on August 5th and subsequent to that as you know we’ve received comments from Clark Cells as well as staff and by letter dated October 20th, I’ve submitted a proposal to this Board for consideration and some of the reactions that our client had to the comments that had been made.  Clearly we’re here tonight to receive further comments from this Board before we make any further revisions to the final EIS.  We’ve reached out to this Board really to just go back to basics and SEQRA to recognize that you can take a document and you can scrutinize it and you can look at it many, many different ways.  I’ll take for example the Clark letter some of the comments were while that Clark recognized that the reorganization was much better done by topic, they indicated that some of the summaries were too brief and then they indicated that not enough information had been given out at a particular point, or not sufficient on a particular point.  That becomes almost an editorial comment on what the final EIS is.  What we’re asking the Board to do when you’re considering your comments is that if you go back to the basic regulations and SEQRA as we point out in our October 20th letter, this final environmental impact statement does meet the format of the SEQRA regulations.  We’re looking for a common sense review of the final EIS.  We believe that the document that we have prepared and with the changes that we’re advising the Board that we’re ready, willing, and able to make as we laid out in our October 20th letter, we think that by the time we get back here with another version of the final EIS, that it would be in an acceptable form.  One of the things I talked to Mike about when we were coming down here this evening is in the October 20th letter I sited an old case, Aldridge, about the fact that you really don’t have to put every single issue under a microscope.  Just last week on October 27th, the Court of Appeals just came out with a new case dealing with the fact that Planning Boards and Town Boards and Zoning Boards, when you’re looking at SEQRA you have every right to just exercise a reasoned view using your common sense and you don’t have to dissect every single issue.  Here, in our final EIS we believe that after the document was reformatted by Tim Miller’s office that it really does comport with the mandate of SEQRA.  We’d ask that you consider that and also we’re here tonight for any further comments that the Board may have on our proposal. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s exactly what we’re going to do.  Anybody have any comments that they wish to make?

Mr. John Bernard stated just to start with the lot count now is down now from 27 to 22 and one of those 22 is a lot that’s being deeded to the Town for open space but I see you still have lots 17 and 18 which are those two at the northeast corner which require a very long driveway coming down a very steep embankment from the roadway from Lexington and those two houses 17 and 18 sit in a very low part of the property.  They’re right almost on the same level as the head waters of the major wetland on the property.  I just still have a problem with lot 17 and 18 being there. 

Mr. Peter Lynch responded Mr. Bernard I will tell you this that Mike Sheber and I have had lengthy discussions about lot 17 and 18 and as you can see from the DEIS to the FEIS, we’ve made significant changes and reductions in the projects and we’re going to go back and take another real hard look at the concerns that you have on those two lots. 

Mr. John Bernard asked are there any changes noted anywhere in the FEIS for improvements to the intersection at Red Mill Road?  I didn’t find any.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded we responded to comments about it but not any specific design changes.

Mr. John Bernard asked would an applicant be allowed to make changes to an intersection like that or put some money aside for improvements to an intersection?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded of course.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. John Bernard asked but nothing’s been proposed at this point?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded my next step is reminding me of one thing.  The one thing that I want to point out is on Mill Court access, which has been a big topic of discussion here is that we had in the DEIS plan when we had 27 lots, 22 homes were going to be accessed off of Mill Court and in recognition of the issues that’s been reduced down to 16.  In the design changes Mike has a point to make. 

Mr. Mike Sheber presented himself to the Board and stated with Kirquel Development.  In the DEIS and also in the FEIS we have agreed to modify that intersection Mill Court and Red Mill Road by opening up the area so that sight lines would be improved.  This is something that was presented to your traffic consultant and they came back and said that that was a very good idea that we agreed to do.  It was based on comments that we had from a lot of the occupants on Mill Court that what they said was they were going out onto Red Mill Road, they couldn’t see traffic on either direction.  What we did was our traffic consultant engineered that corner to increase the sight lines so that we agreed to provide the funds to the Town in order to make these changes. 
Mr. Peter Lynch stated and we had that in the DEIS.

Mr. John Bernard stated in the DEIS.  I was looking for it in the FEIS.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated we haven’t changed any further since then.  I’m sorry I misunderstood your question because we did have that.

Mr. John Bernard stated I apologize for not getting through the DEIS completely then.  Is the Amherst Drive connection completely dead?  That’s just out of the picture?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded we have it as an emergency access but it would be up to the Town to really accept the dedication of that road as a public road.  Right now it’s a private road.

Mr. John Bernard asked so it’s up to the Town to accept that as a public road.  No one else is involved?  In other words, the people at the other site on Amherst can’t refuse to allow that?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded when that subdivision was created it would have been a filing of a subdivision plat depicting streets on the plat and the filing of the plat constitutes an offer of dedication which is pretty much essentially that unless the plat says it’s not being dedicated it’s an offer that can be accepted by the Town at any time. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I understand.  The last comment concerns – I don’t mean to be picky but in accordance with what you were saying in your preliminary comments, but the Beth Evans report that’s just about the last thing in the book.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded there’s two: there’s a fuller report which is…

Mr. John Bernard continued I think this is in Appendix Q.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded ‘Q’ is the June 27th letter.

Mr. John Bernard stated let me just quote from the letter “the more species that are represented within a given ecosystem, the higher the biodiversity and the more stable the ecosystem.  The loss of the tree cover on the subject property due to the proposed development represents removal of a portion of the Upland forest community,” but then she goes on to say “but this does not eliminate the cover type nor species represented on the site and therefore the loss of tree cover proposed will not alter the overall biodiversity of the site in an adverse manner.”  I don’t understand how she can say on the one hand what defines biodiversity and on the one hand she defines it and then by the loss of some of that say that “there’s no affect?”

Mr. Peter Lynch responded what she’s recognizing there is there’s a balance between the environmental concern of the biodiversity of the site and recognizing that with some reasoned development there will be some loss but she’s making a determination in her professional opinion that it would not be a significant adverse impact.  You may recall that approximately almost 50% of this site is in lot 22 which is the open space area and the FEIS shows that approximately 80% of the identified trees on site will be maintained.  Evans is actually finding that, yes this is an impact and it’s been identified but it’s not going to be a significant one which is exactly what SEQRA requires is a balance between the development of the site, recognizing some of the significant environmental issues and coming up with a reasoned plan.  I don’t think that Evans’s report is inconsistent at all but rather is a report that comports with what SEQRA requires. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I would say that your evaluation of a definition is different than mine because she is completely saying two different things that are in opposition to each other which I just can’t stand.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded she’s quantifying the impact. 

Mr. John Bernard stated she goes on to say in the next paragraph that this property is “no way connected to any biodiversity corridors, no wildlife corridors.”
Mr. Peter Lynch responded what she’s saying it’s not a direct connect.  

Mr. John Bernard stated it is what she’s saying.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated the closest one is a mile west.

Mr. John Bernard continued and she goes on to say that Route 9 is a barrier to most wildlife species and neglects to talk about the other three sides of the property. 

Mr. Peter Lynch responded she’s identified those corridors and she’s indicated that this particular open space parcel, when you look at her more full report earlier on in the FEIS, while it’s not directly connected it is a connector of significance.

Mr. John Bernard stated that would be just before Appendix E, that would be the plan that is the Wildlife Habitat Assessment and in there is marked “a natural disbursal corridor” it’s labeled HA-1.  It’s a fairly extensive corridor across the section of the proposed development that is to be left open space and the way the arrows look it’s a wildlife corridor that kind of points over there to some developed areas where there are houses, at least on the one side, I guess that’s the north, doesn’t really show us what’s on the south side, I don’t know.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded if I would invite your attention to the biological assessment report that Evans did as Appendix D.
Mr. John Bernard asked what page are you on?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded it’s Appendix D.

Mr. John Bernard stated well there’s the Croton Highlands Biodiversity Map.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded that’s correct.  She’s identified the various biodiversity units that she’s referring to in her report and she’s finding that while this is a distinctly, separate 22 acre parcel, she is also…

Mr. John Bernard interrupted well 52 acre parcel.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded I’m talking about lot 22.  She’s finding that the preservation of that large of a portion of the site which includes the wetland and the buffer to the wetland is really a significant positive environmental aspect of this proposal.  She’s finding in her report that frankly that change in the project from the original 27 acre site is actually a very acceptable balance and so while you’re referring to -- Tim is going to jump in at this point. 

Mr. Tim Miller continued I think it might be wise to ask Beth to clarify her letter.  We’re going to revise the report I don’t want to speak for her.  I think he raises good questions.  Why don’t we ask her to clarify it and take it from the horse’s mouth. 

Mr. John Bernard responded sure, that would be fine. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I have just one comment on the wording.  This is on page 3.5-2 as part of response 3.5-1.  There is a sentence which reads “there is nothing in the record to suggest that the existing intersection of Mill Court and Red Mill Road exists or would become a hazard.”  I would suggest is pretty good evidence to suggest that the intersection exists.  I think what you meant to say is to suggest that the existing intersection of Mill Court and Red Mill Road ‘is now’ or ‘would become’ a hazard.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded editorial comment noted and it will be changed.  I think it was referring to no existing hazard.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I have a number of comments concerning numbers.  Whenever I see numbers I try to make sure I understand where they’re coming from. As an example I’ll mention a few pages where there’s quite a few percents put into the narrative here that I couldn’t verify.  Page 1-5 is an example where you have tables 1-3 and 1-4.  The paragraphs refer to various components reduced 26% or by using the alternative the 25.7% regulates steep slopes reduced to 14.1%.  I took a few of those and I couldn’t really confirm those numbers because I didn’t know where the numbers were taken from.  My suggestion on this is to better understand where these numbers – rather than put them in the narrative.  The way I see it right now you can put whatever number you want in there unless you’re really going to do the math you don’t know if it’s right or not.  Not that somebody would lie about it but I’d like to verify these numbers.  That the tables should have another column at least in them showing what the percent reduction is from the 27 lot planned to the 22 lot planned to the alternative plan.  It’s a simple way of doing it so I can see right across, we go from one number to another number and that’s the percent reduction or increase.
Mr. Peter Lynch responded that’s fine.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi continued a number of my comments refer to that.  Also on page 1-5 you talk about the revised 22 lot proposal.

Mr. Tim Miller asked I don’t understand your comment on the table.  Could you just clarify?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded for instance where you have a table, any table, and you refer to percent reductions or increases, whatever the matter is, you add another column – maybe it’s just better to point to this. 

Mr. Tim Miller responded these tables don’t refer to percentages, these tables refer to actual…
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I understand that but in the narrative you mention percent reductions comparing numbers from the various columns and my suggestion is to put another column in there with the percentage.  
Mr. Tim Miller responded okay, I got that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated on the same page 1-5 the revised 22 lot proposal you said any alt makes significant reductions.  I don’t know if it’s significant.  I can’t tell.  That’s another example of my lack of being able to verify some of the percents.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded I think that while we didn’t put a mathematical precision on that what we’re saying here is we’ve reduced impervious surface for example the road throughout the project is going from a 30 foot width to a 24 foot width.  We’ve reduced a number of…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi continued you talk about post construction run-off here in that particular example and I don’t see depending on which storm you’re talking about I don’t see a significant.

Mr. Tim Miller responded we’ll take away the word “significant.”

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that’s my point.  Same comments apply on the tables 1-6.  Same kind of comment on page 1-7 where I actually went into the table on page 1-8 to try to confirm that “80% of the survey trees are going to be preserved.”  I didn’t come up with that number.  I came up to a number that was closer to 70%.  In a case like that I would just like to see maybe in parentheses after the 80% what number are you using to get to that 80%?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded I think that’s a fair comment.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated this is something that I always bring up, I probably brought up in the first rounds of comments I’m pretty sure.  You have a proposed selling price of $900,000 and the current proposed plan is two numbers here 900,000 and 810,000 and that affects all of the economics when you use numbers like that right down the line to tax revenues to benefits to the Town and to the residents of the Town.  I just think that’s unrealistic.  I don’t see how, in this market, and it’s not going to get much better much sooner how you can ask, I mean maybe these are going to be $900,000 houses but I just don’t see it.  I think that’s an unrealistic number that’s just pumped up to make the other numbers look good.

Mr. Tim Miller stated just for clarification we could lie about these numbers at any level you’d like, we can run them at $600,000…
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m not saying the number.  I just think that that’s, let’s face it the higher the number is the better it looks from tax revenue viewpoint and the school tax benefits.  It just makes everything look a lot better.  

Mr. Mike Sheber responded we used a bottom line number.  If we can’t get that kind of price for these houses, we’re not going to sell them.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you’re not going to build them then.

Mr. Mike Sheber stated maybe we won’t build them then.  That’s a bottom line. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you think you’re going to get $900,000.  We can argue about this philosophically.

Mr. Mike Sheber stated we said $800 for a four bedroom house a year from now, I think we will.  If we don’t we’re not going to sell them.  But, that’s a bottom line number for us. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated on the plans that you show here select figures 1-1 and 1-1alt, there should be a key on here that shows what the different colors mean.  I couldn’t figure out in a lot of cases what the yellowish color meant.  I see the green is open space.  There should be more keys on – especially on 1-1-alt you have different shades of green.  There should be some kind of a key on there.  

Mr. John Klarl asked so a color key?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded yes.  My last comment was on the price again.  That’s it.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on page 1-4 on your chart table 1-1 you’re missing a word I think it’s “lawn and landscape” you just have “lawn and ____.”  Just add the word there.  Secondly, on page 2-8 I take a little bit of an objection here.  You say “if the Planning Board insists that lot 17 and 18 are eliminated than the applicant will add two lots to the building site along the loop road.”  Perhaps the better word will “propose.”

Mr. Peter Lynch responded actually if I may skip the 2-8 I thought that we had in my letter, there was a comment that staff had made that very point and it had already been addressed.  Mr. Chairman what page are you referring to?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded 2-8, in the middle of the page response 2-17, the last sentence.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is that gone from the latest version?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded that’s gone from the latest version yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it ends at 2-6.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated right.  Are you looking at the October ’08?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I’m looking at the October 16th.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated this is August 5th, 2009 is the revision draft. 

Mr. Steven Kessler I’m sorry I think I may have looked at the wrong one.  I take that back. 

Mr. Peter Lynch stated because we had taken that comment out. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the other point that I wanted to make is that we mentioned 80% of the trees being saved and it’s not a specific comment here but let’s also recognize that 1/3 of the trees greater than 12 inches in diameter are being removed from the site under your proposal.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded well we’re going to go back and verify the inches.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I understand that but we’re focusing on the 80% but let’s not also lose focus of some of the more specimen trees, the larger trees that there are a significant number of those that are being removed. 

Mr. Tim Miller asked can we say that the trees that are remaining in 20 years will be specimen-like?
Mr. Steven Kessler asked that will be remaining in 20 years?

Mr. Tim Miller responded in 20 years they’ll be specimen-like.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated hopefully yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I have a request and then I have a question which may become a request and that has to do with – is there a map in the FEIS which has wetlands, buffers, steep slopes along with the layout of the homes, the site plan itself, in one place?

Mr. John Klarl asked I’m sorry you said wetland, wetland buffers and steep slopes?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded wetland, wetland buffers, steep slopes all on the same map.  

Mr. Peter Lynch responded I know that there’s a number of different ones but I’m waiting to hear back from…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I know there’s a number of different ones too.  I just thought that maybe did I miss that somewhere.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated you want to have it all in a condensed version so you have it all in front of you. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, I think those are very important in these kinds of documents.  My request would be that if there isn’t one let’s get one in the FEIS.  Other thing is the fact that, and this is just the teacher in me, I really have a problem with the proceedings sections that you stuck the pages in and they’re misaligned and chopped off and whatever.  This is a document that has our names on it.  I would like to see you redo that whole section and make the pages look nice and neat and not be chopped off at the bottoms or on the sides.
Mr. Tim Miller stated that was a technical problem with our machine. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I appreciate my colleague’s comments and I’m glad John brought up about the Evans report so I had my concerns there too.  So, I do appreciate what Tim is saying about possibly getting Beth to clarify some points there so I won’t harp on that.  On the traffic and transportation section 3.5, before I give you a specific section, when you go back to a letter earlier on from the boroughs of the Westchester County Planning Office in July of ’07 which is at the back of the book, halfway through, Steve references because of the access to Lexington Avenue of at least five of these houses, the way you have it laid out now, Lexington Avenue being a County road well traveled with County bus travel traffic and bus stops which are not very safe.  On page 3 of his letter he makes reference to public transit.  Do you have in the document, I’m not sure you do, more details about how residents of your proposal will be able to access or get to the bus stops?  Should it be contained in this document within the purview as us or staff and when and if as this project moves or nears its completion, would that be any kind of an off-site improvement that could be done by the developer?  I bring it up because I think John Bernard earlier when he asked about intersection improvements I thought he was talking about it and he may have been, the Red Mill/Lexington/Strawberry intersection where you want to put a very long circuitous driveway for two of the homes and then you eluded to the Mill Court/Red Mill intersection which I know has been addressed with a possible curb cut.  What I’m wondering is, is this something that, we as a Board, can look at either in this document or during the approval process?

Mr. Tim Miller stated I’m trying to understand the question, is it are we making improvements in connection with public transit and the bus stops, is that your question?
Mr. Robert Foley stated two things: one is on the public transit, in general, any improvements off site on Lexington to make it safer whether it’s shoulders leaving room for the bus stop, benches.

Mr. Tim Miller responded there’s bus stops already on Lexington in front of our site.
Mr. Robert Foley responded I know that, one is further there where you want to put a driveway, correct?  Closer to Strawberry?

Mr. Mike Sheber responded there’s three bus stops, one on Strawberry, then one in the middle of our property, then one in the end of our property.  There’s three stops.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I thought there was one closer to Strawberry on Lexington near where you’re planning a driveway for two homes. 

Mr. Mike Sheber responded it’s farther down.
Mr. Robert Foley stated going towards your court way apartments?

Mr. Mike Sheber responded yes.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m just wondering in general whether off site improvements should be specified in here or is that for further discussion on that corridor?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded because there are already existing bus stops there we had not proposed any.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t mean to put new bus stops in.  I mean to improve the road for better safety and access to pedestrians to get to the bus stop and be safe standing at a bus stop.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated along those lines Ed Burroughs comment does say “the final EIS should include a map of the site with the bus stops clearly delineated to show the relationship between your proposed site plan and the existing bus stops.”  So, maybe just show that. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated we can show the bus stops on there.  We can do that.  We haven’t proposed any improvements.  Nowhere in these proceedings have we identified an impact associated with the use of the bus stops, a safety hazard or that kind of an issue.
Mr. John Klarl stated it sounds like you might have been baffled all these questions whether or not any of your driveways alter the bus stops as they are presently located. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded and one way to answer that question is to show the bus stops on the map and then the Planning Board can look at it. 

Mr. Mike Sheber stated there was one other thing, we also agreed to provide easements for sidewalks on Lexington.
 Mr. Robert Foley asked on Lexington?  Okay, that would be an improvement and therefore it may solve the problem I’m talking about.  You have to be there and see when I’m talking about, the road, the shoulders and the grass.  It’s very dangerous.  A person was killed there a few years ago which I brought up, nothing to do with you, at a previous meeting, I think the scoping meeting.  Back to the Mill Court/Red Mill access which Mike has talked to and I know you’ve been talking with an engineer or whatever the consultant.  Is that curb possible expansion or curb cut to make it easier for the larger school buses to get up off of Red Mill onto Mill Court?  Is that going to be on the Town right-of-way or is it a taking of a private property with those two corner houses?  Do you know?

Mr. Mike Sheber responded Town right-of-way.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it would be on the Town right-of-way.

Mr. Mike Sheber stated it’s the only thing that we addressed is really the area that would be a Town right-of-way.  We have not looked at anything that would affect the owners of the homes on the corners.
Mr. Robert Foley and there would be sufficient room for a curb cut, a safe curb cut for the buses on the Town right-of-way or you don’t know yet?

Mr. Mike Sheber responded there is a memo in the 
Mr. Robert Foley stated I know you make a reference of it on one of the pages here.  

Mr. Mike Sheber what the school bus department has told us is that after the curb cuts were changed and if the full size bus cannot make the turn they will provide a van service up Mill Court.  They have to do it because of the length between the bus stop and the end of our development.  There will be bus service.  Either with a full size bus or with a van. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated if they can’t maneuver with a full size bus which traverses that corridor, not only for Lakeland – I’ve talked to the Lakeland transportation superintendent but also Put Valley they would then have to have an additional or a smaller van bus?

Mr. Mike Sheber responded not an additional one.  My understanding is they have enough school buses to accommodate whatever students are generated from the development. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated these are questions, if I could, for the public hearing and the FEIS.  The point tonight is are there things in here that…

Mr. Robert Foley stated there isn’t.  The bus situation was brought up at the first public hearings and I’m asking where it is in here other than the Mill Court and it seems to be a little bit fuzzy as to exactly what would happen there whether it be a large enough curb cuts.  The larger buses or whether the tax payers have to absorb an additional small mini van bus.  One of which used to go up there anyway for handicapped.  That’s my question.  That same section “Traffic and Transportation” and I mentioned that I think at the work session, could we require an additional traffic analysis not a full traffic study, I know it’s been brought up before, the original Edwards and Kelsey was two and a half years ago in 2007 which you have in the book, but since then there have been newer developments in the area and Yorktown did a study on Strawberry Road in April of this year, I think it was Phil Greeley with Collins traffic analysis where it showed on Strawberry leading to Lexington/Red Mill intersection near your right to part of your site, a generation of daily 10,588 cars per day.  Some of them were cut off to another road, but a good percentage continued.  Should that not be included in this document?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded we don’t really think that the traffic study that was done and that was reviewed by E & K as stale.  Certainly, if the project density had remained the same, I think that it may justify another look but as we’ve indicated we’ve reduced the project lots from 27 to 21 and overall and from 22 to 16 these are the Mill Court.  Our belief was that because of that overall project reduction and granted there has been some time since the study was done we don’t think that it’s so stale or inappropriate that we should be required to get a new analysis done.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s your opinion, your belief.  I’m asking if there should be some more empirical data?  I’m not talking about a full analysis.  From what I understand from one of our consultants and it may prove what Mr. Lynch is saying that’s true but if you took the newer study on Strawberry Road and compared the growth rate of the background and then over the two year period as Edwards Kelsey was done and if the counts are the same then fine, but if…

Mr. Tim Miller asked do they have peek hour turning movement Chairman Kessler.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated Bob, there are differences.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I brought it up several meetings ago.  I even held up the article.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked are there differences in the traffic count numbers during the peek hours?

Mr. Robert Foley asked between what the newer released studies and…?  I’m not sure.  I think there are longer numbers…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s something that our consultant could take a look at.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I had brought it up in the past and I was hoping that something would have come forward.

Mr. Tim Miller stated Bob, I just want to make sure that your question involves apples and apples because if someone did a daily count, a 24-hour count on Strawberry.

Mr. Robert Foley interrupted a 10-day count I believe.

Mr. Tim Miller continued a 10-day count on Strawberry, I mean our traffic analysis examined the peek hour turning movements at intersections as they were set forth in the scope.  If the level of service calculations the daily volumes that’s a whole different metric and it’s not something that normally a traffic study would even get into as far as intersection capacity is concerned.  If there was a turning movement counts, peek hour turning movement counts that were substantially different than what was in this report, that’s something that I’d be happy to look at because it’s easy to do.  But, if you’re talking about a 24-hour count just in the abstract I don’t see – what do we do with that?
Mr. Robert Foley stated I haven’t seen the report of Red Mill.  I talked to someone in Yorktown and I was hoping when it was first brought up then maybe we would have gotten the report. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated again, the easy solution would be to provide our consultant with the Yorktown report…

Mr. Robert Foley asked if it is only the daily counts, then what I’m saying is maybe there should be then a further analysis.  It’s two and a half years later.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated Bob, once again, the thing to do would be to give our consultant the Yorktown report to see if there’s…

Mr. Tim Miller stated give it to me and I’ll take a quick look at it as well.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated and then again at the work session I brought up again and I know it may be a legal to point here we never had a meeting, we were going to one possibility of a Route 6 bypass that’s in the document.  You guys can’t address it and of three to five possible plans or concepts one of them would have touched on part of your property.  I did look at a sketch from Yorktown.  It didn’t seem to go all the way through your property.  It only seemed to be along the Lexington part and I thought that that should have been addressed in more detail but now I’m being told because there’s no site design yet on the bypass that it would be a legal issue but I’d like to see some type of a legal letter, at least from our Town, on that to clear the air on it. 
Mr. Ed Vergano stated just for the record that Route 6 bypass is many years down the road number one.  There’s a number of different concepts that the DOT is considering and I believe there was a letter generated by a DOT official John Helmer some years ago discounting this as a viable option.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked say that again? 

Mr. Ed Vergano reiterated John Helmer wrote a letter a few years ago discounting this as a viable option because of grade issues and wetlands and environmental impacts.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked was that before Yorktown Planning presented a sketch with a topography and everything?
Mr. Ed Vergano responded I believe that was after. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked and he’s from where?  From DOT?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded he’s retired now.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the same section on the Amherst Drive which someone brought up, I believe John, that’s a no deal because Wild Birch Farms does not want a public – they have private roads.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s right, yes. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I wish we could look back and I had asked a previous planner a few years ago when this first came up to look at the original approving resolution and/or the site layout approved site plan for Wild Birch to see if it included opening up that berm or dead end road that was supposedly the original intention coming out of Wild Birch heading up towards your property with the hope that if those properties were developed there would be another access in and out of there not just dumping all the cars, excuse the expression, on Red Mill and I’d like to know if that can be looked into.  If it’s not in the approving resolution which it may not have been I don’t know – was it on the actual…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I believe we have researched in the past.  I’ll certainly pull out our findings and share them with the Board.

Mr. Robert Foley asked in reference to page 2-1 on the adjoining the Cortlandt Colony, when we were up there we saw how close some of the homes on your proposed cul-de-sac and I may have brought this up, is there blasting anticipated at all for any of your construction phases?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded near the Colony?  No.

Mr. Robert Foley asked in other words, you don’t anticipate any blasting on where the 16 homes are being proposed?  And, if there is there’d be safeguards?

Mr. Mike Sheber responded on the blasting, there is no blasting anticipated at any of the sites where the homes are being constructed.  In fact, in the FEIS we have a discussion about the distances between our development and the pool which was an issue for the Commons.

Mr. Robert Foley responded I read that.  I have it right here.

Mr. Mike Sheber continued we have a diagram in the FEIS which shows exactly what the situation will be after the development.  That’s been answered.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I know that part.  I was just curious whether any blasting would be anticipated in that corner of the development.

Mr. Mike Sheber responded no, absolutely not.

Mr. Robert Foley stated there are various spelling errors again, but I’ll including one of our Board members, I’ll – page 4-1, comment 4-2, name spellings should be corrected and there are a few others.  Most of them you had corrected in the past. 

Mr. Peter Lynch stated that distance that Mike was talking about, that sketch shows the nearest home is 105 foot away from the property line adjoining the pool.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked any further comments?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Mr. Chairman I move that we bring this back under ‘old business’ again at the December 1st meeting and take a look at whatever changes.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t know if we’ll have it by then.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s somewhat dependent on how fast…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated or you can just refer it back.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let me just refer it back, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
Mr. Peter Lynch asked I’m sorry I didn’t hear the motion.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded to refer it back the application to staff.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated what we’ll typically look for which should be forthcoming is letters from our two consultants pretty much – they’ve said numerous times comment addressed, we typically get a letter saying they’re satisfied and I think they’re close to saying that.  You’re going to review the Planning Board members comments whatever’s left over and hopefully that will be done by the December meeting.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated one of the questions that Mike had was when you approve the draft environmental impact statement it was approved kind of like in a similar scenario where there were a bunch of loose ends to be done that you would recommend approving the DEIS at the time provided that these additional changes were made, would you consider doing that tonight?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded if we get the letters from the statement from the consultants that they’re satisfied with completeness I think pretty much we are as well and if we get that within the next couple of weeks, staff will probably prepare a resolution on that for the next meeting?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that may not.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked why is that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well your comments may not have been that in-depth but they still should address your comments.  I would just think that it would be more likely that we could handle it at the December meeting.  There still may be some loose ends at the December meeting and then send them on their way saying “we’re all set” at the December meeting.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated they can start the changes that we’ve talked about this evening? 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated we can choose then to set a public hearing on the FEIS?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded right, that’s what I would think.  It comes back to the December meeting that we agree that whatever’s still outstanding or a just a few loose ends and then set the process for scheduling the hearing.

Mr. John Klarl asked but do that at the December meeting?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Mike Sheber asked you referred to the consultants being satisfied, what if they’re not?  The issue is going to be the format because the Clark report requesting that we redo a substantial part of the FEIS, we’re not going to do that.

Mr. John Klarl stated what they’ll do is they’ll tell us if it’s completed or not.  If it’s not complete they’ll tell us what’s missing.  This Board can either recognize that or dispense with it. 

Mr. Mike Sheber continued we have the report now, right?  We’ve agreed to make some minor changes.  The major issue is going to be for Clark is going to be the redoing of the format which we are not in position to do.  I would like to find out from the Board whether or not that’s going to prevent you from deeming our FEIS?

Mr. John Klarl responded like I said, they’ll give us a list.  They’ll tell us if it’s complete or not complete.  If it’s not complete they’ll give us a list and we can either agree with those items or we can dispense those items. 

Mr. Peter Lynch stated I think what Mike’s going to…

Mr. John Klarl stated I understand but the consultants have to speak to us.  When they speak to us we can tell them what we’re going to give way to and what we’re not going to give way to. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated they’re part of our input.  They don’t make the decisions for us but they’re part of the input.  That’s all we’re saying.

Mr. John Klarl stated agree what they have. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I could see Mr. Sheber’s concern because when I read the Clark report and talked to one of the gentlemen Stolman as late as today in fact and the other time before the other meeting and they’re still referring to it as cryptic and talking about the format not sufficiently improved that Mr. Lynch referred to in his opening statement.  I have my questions about – that’s why I was a little surprised in what we’re saying it’s almost ready.  When you read the Clark report it seems like there should still be, whether it’s not a full reformat but there’s still some questions.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated that’s what I was getting at in the beginning of my statements is that is like anything else, you could say “we want such and such” and then “well you didn’t do enough.”  All we ask is for to do is that when we do make the next submission just keep an open mind on it.  It’s never going to be perfect.  You can’t satisfy everyone but we do think it will be in a reasonable form. 

Mr. John Klarl stated we understand Mr. Sheber’s comments but we have to wait for our consultants and we’ll react appropriately but we understand his comments. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated just as an example in going to the new book, the updated one, page 3.3.8-1 on socio-economic comments I was looking for something to cross-reference it from the previous document which Steve has here tonight and you end there on the last words of that 3.8-1 halfway, it ends at mid-page something about “see summary section 1.2 entitled Socioeconomics,” and you go to there and it’s not there.  That’s what maybe the formatting or the confusion of this whole thing is a little baffling.  Still, it’s improved granted, but I don’t know.  It’s too important a project to dismiss it as whatever you were just saying Mr. Lynch.
PB 24-06    c.
Application and Draft Environmental Impact Statement dated October 16, 2009 of Ace Sport Realty Holding Corp., c/o Phillip Hersh, for Site Development Plan approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for two retail/office buildings totaling approximately 27,400 sq. ft. located on a 2.08 acre parcel on the north side of Route 6 at the intersection with the Bear Mountain Parkway and Jacobs Hill Road as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Retail/Office Buildings Main Street Plaza” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated May 19, 2008.


Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’re going to circulate to our consultants the revised DEIS.
Mr. Phillip Hersh stated they should have a copy at this point in time. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’re going to refer this back and hopefully…

Mr. Phillip Hersh stated I just wanted to advise the Board that there were minor changes and there’s obviously there’s been a long lag in time but they’re trying to keep it alive.  It hasn’t changed much.  We believe we’ve addressed all the comments and so hopefully we can move forward.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked the buildings are a little smaller now right?

Mr. Phillip Hersh responded the buildings are reduced slightly, a little less than 10% and minor adjustments to addressed comments.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion that we refer this back, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*




CORRESPONDENCE

PB 29-99    a.
Letter dated October 21, 2009 from Jack Reynolds requesting Planning Board approval of an exterior façade remodel for the existing Kohl’s Store located at 3008 East Main Street (Route 6).

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think we’re ready to approve this subject to the Architectural Review group being satisfied as well. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we have forwarded the renderings to the Architectural Review Board.  Sometimes they get comments before the meetings and sometimes not.  You’re going to need to pull building Permits for this from Code Enforcement.  They won’t issue the building Permits until they hear that Architectural Review is satisfied so if you just keep in touch with my office.  As soon as we hear the comments we’ll get them to you.  I wouldn’t imagine they would be substantial.

Mr. John Klarl asked you’ve worked out your issues with approvals between landlord and tenant right?  You had that for a while and that was resolved?

Mr. Jack Reynolds responded  I understand we did.
Mr. John Bernard Mr. Chairman I move that we approve this application subject to Architectural Review Committee’s approval, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 6-04      b.
Letter dated October 13, 2009 from Joel Greenberg, R.A. requesting the sixth six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Khan subdivision located on the west side of Lexington Avenue, approximately 400 feet north of John Street.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion that we approve resolution number 51-09 approving the extension, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 12-94    c.
Letter dated October 21, 2009 from Steve Kahn requesting Planning Board approval of a building awning for Danny’s Cycles located on Pad 5 at the Cortlandt Town Center.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we had a long discussion.  Ultimately, I think you need to go to the Architectural Review Committee as well and get their approval.  There’s a certain standard that we’ve established at the Town Center in terms of the awnings and signage of course.  We just want to make sure that they’re comfortable with this. 

Mr. Khan stated there’s been some confusion between myself and the Acadia of what they deem as – obviously they approved the drawings that I gave to them for the awning. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked the Architectural review did?

Mr. Khan responded no, Acadia, the property owners.  Initially we thought that we were doing something different – we can go either way however it’s going to end up whether it’s just going to be a solid color awning or something with a little bit of…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think you can work that out with Architectural Review.  Solid is one end of the spectrum but there may be some allowance for some design elements as well. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we did provide the owner with the same ARC comments that you have so you have those and I can also provide you the contact information to talk directly to the ARC and try to figure something out. 

Mr. John Klarl asked so he’s received the November 3rd memo?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do we approve this subject to ARC like the last one or do we want to see this again?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded I think we say that we’d see it again only because we don’t know really where it’s going to end up.  My motion would be just to send the applicant to the ARC and then to bring this back following some further action by ARC, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 15-07    d.
Letter dated October 23, 2009 from Daniel Ciarcia, P.E. requesting a retroactive second and additional third six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Guiffre Subdivision located on School Street.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I move that we adopt resolution 52-09, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 15-07    e.
A letter dated October 30th, 2009 from Ronald Wegner regarding the Michael Ryan subdivision on 109 Watchhill Road requesting a second six-month extension.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion Mr. Chairman to adopt resolution 53-09, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*
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NEW BUSINESS 
PB 10-09    a.
Application of the Peekskill New York Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses for Site Development Plan Approval for a 1,938 sq. ft. addition to the existing 2,117 sq. ft. church building and for an additional 19 parking spaces for property located at 1071 Oregon Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Jason Anderson, R.A. dated September 15, 2009.

Mr. Jason Anderson presented himself to the Board and stated just to give you a little history here, we met with your staff and reviewed the project and they recommended that we come before you.  We’re still preparing engineer drawings and wanted to get some comments.  To give you a little history of what we’re looking to do here.  Basically, it’s a little expansion of the building, actually almost doubling the size, the footprint of it.  What we have now is about 2,100 square feet plus a full basement below and the issues we have with the building is it’s not accessible.  Basically we’re trying to take the uses from the basement, bring them up to the first floor and be able to then have the whole building accessible.  No additional occupants.  No change in even seating but basically just bringing those uses up.  The other part of it, I don’t know if you know the property or not, we have a survey that we attached but there is 26 parking spaces now and there is an overflow gravel parking area.  What we’re looking to do is take that gravel parking area, reconfigure it a little bit, and then pave the whole thing.  By doing that we’ll be able to conform to the local zoning.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what does the zoning require in terms of parking?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded one per four with the seating.  One parking space per four seats. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked per four seats?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded yes.  We have 172 seats and that puts 44 parking spaces as well as 2 handicap spaces.  That’s basically what we’re looking to do.  Right now, we feel that this plan -- we’ve included another partially engineered drawing but it conforms basically everything else in the zoning as far as landscaping or green areas and impervious and we’re under an acre.  That’s really the gist of the expansion. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do we have any comments on this?  What will happen is staff will review it and issue a review memorandum with some questions.  Once we get that back then we should be ready for a public hearing on this.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just the one minor issue that there may be some steep slope impact that’s what you said, the drawing just hasn’t been engineered enough to know for sure so they may require a Steep Slopes Permit. 

Mr. Jason Anderson responded if you look at the back corner there which is where there is no parking undisturbed, there’s trees back there now and we believe there’s a small area of steep slopes there. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked where exactly is this?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded it’s actually a mile down the street.

Mr. John Klarl responded right on Oregon Road.  Going towards Hollowbrook, you see it on your right-hand side.  It’s caddy corner?
Mr. Steven Kessler asked before Hollowbrook?

Mr. John Klarl responded yes, it’s sits caddy corner?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded it’s right at the light.

Mr. Robert Foley continued just after the golf course entrance and before you get to the golf maintenance building. 

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s at the intersection of Oregon and?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded Varian.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Varian, where that little deli is, just across from it. 

Mr. John Klarl stated Steven knows because it sits caddy corner to the traffic. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked after the golf course?

Mr. John Klarl responded it’s across that small deli before the golf course.  It’s a little small deli.  Varian and Oregon. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’ll take a look.

Mr. John Klarl asked are you Jason Anderson from?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded yes.  The other point just to make is there’s no additional curb cut that’s existing entrance and the front yard is a septic that is approved by the Department of Health and we’ve already been contacting them. 

Mr. John Bernard asked is the current parking lot paved?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded if you picture half of that, it’s paved and then the other half is gravel.  There’s 26 spots now that are paved and the rest is gravel.

Mr. John Bernard stated I was going to suggest you might think about permeable pavers on the rest of the lot.

Mr. Jason Anderson stated we’re actually using permeable asphalt on another project and trying to see how that works.

Mr. John Bernard stated it works real well and they’ve got permeable concrete now. 

Mr. Jason Anderson stated when we were talking with Ed, we were talking about having some seepage pits down along where, and then connecting to the existing line we have for drainage.

Mr. John Bernard stated so you’re thinking, that’s good, that’s wonderful. 

Mr. Jason Anderson stated it seems like a pretty simple project though.

Mr. John Bernard asked in the basement you said you’re moving the services that are in the basement now up to the new addition?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded that’s right. 

Mr. John Bernard continued that means that the basement still will be an accessible?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded that’s right.  Just a mechanical space is all that it will be.  We’re not using it for any assembly space. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I see.  That’s a future project. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I move that we refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*




ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adjourn.
11:24 p.m.
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